

English / Maths module USER GUIDE

VERSION 1.35

July 2023





Contents

Introduction	ļ
The English and Maths Measure – Background	1
Calculating Progress for Students in Scope for the Measures	5
Changes to Points Scores from 2019-2020	5
Calculating the Overall College Grade	5
3 Year Summaries	7
Viewing the Main Analysis Screens)
Main Menu)
InYear Analysis – Student10)
Comparing DfE Data with College Data12	2
Show Enrolment Info	2
InYear Analysis – Enrolment13	3
In Year Progress14	1
Target Grades14	1
DfE 3 Year Analysis1	5
Start Points16	5
Progress over 3 years1	7
Outcome and Completion18	3
Comparing Progress to DfE (KS5Pup) data18	3
Getting started with the OneGrade English / Maths module20)
Data Imports22	L
Why are English / Maths imports different to the VA imports?2:	L
What Data should I import?2	L
The Import Process – Step 122	2
What the data should look like23	3
The Import Process – Step 2	1
Data Validation Error Reporting24	1
Import Specifications	5
Import Information and Summarisation3	L
Import Troubleshooting	2
Base Learning Aims and Grades	3
Generic ("Dummy") GCSE Base Learning Aims	5



ONEGRADE

English / Maths Module User Guide – July 2023	
Progress Learning Aims and Grades	
Imported Data	
Student Data	
Enrolment Data	
Course Data	
Student Quals on Entry Data	
Student Quals on Entry by Qual Data	
DfE KS5Pup Data	41
In Year Grades	42
Appendix A – Number of Withdrawn Days After Start Date	43





Introduction

The OneGrade English/Maths Module has been developed in response to demand from colleges for a system to track the progress of students enrolled on GCSE and Functional Skills qualifications in English and Maths. This area of delivery has grown exponentially over the last few years and is now a prime measure of college effectiveness, as part of the DfE's new 16-19 Accountability Measures which were introduced in 2015/2016.

The English/Maths Module can be installed either as an additional option to run alongside the main OneGrade Core system, or as a standalone system.

The English and Maths Measure - Background

The rationale for the English and maths measure is set out in the DfE's Technical Guide, which has been available online since 2014 and was last updated (at time of writing) in July 2019:

Introduction

1.1. Initially announced in 2014, from 2016 we have been reforming the school and college accountability systems to set higher expectations, and to make the system fairer, more ambitious, and more transparent.

1.2. To achieve these aims a set of five headline measures was published for the first time in 2016 16-18 performance tables. The headline measures are **progress**, **attainment**, **progress in English and maths** (for students without a GCSE pass at A*-C in these subjects or 9-4 for new reformed GCSEs), **retention**, and destinations.

(July 2019 edition – all excerpts reproduced under the Open Government licence)

The basic workings of the measure are then explained later in the same document:

7.1. English and maths provide a vital foundation to enable students to progress to employment and further study. This measure will help the public hold schools and colleges to account for the progress of students in English and maths where they did not achieve at least a grade C or grade 4 or above at GCSE by the end of key stage 4.

How the measure works

7.2. The English and maths progress measure is made up of two distinct measures, one for maths and the other for English, and an individual student can be in scope for one, both or neither measure depending on their achievement in English and maths by the end of KS4.

7.3. Students in overall scope for each measure have their progress assessed by comparing their best grades by the end of KS4 to those achieved by the end of post-16 study¹¹.

7.4. By aggregating student progress scores to give overall English and maths progress scores for each school and college, the effectiveness of the school or college can be measured and they can be held accountable.





Calculating Progress for Students in Scope for the Measures

Bear in mind what is explained above – a student can be in scope for neither, either or both of the English and maths measures depending on achievement at Key Stage 4 (KS4). However, in the explanation that follows, the text applies equally to either English or maths measure as at the generalised level they both operate in exactly the same way, the only difference being the specific qualification aim codes included in each measure.

The five main stages of the process for both English and maths measures are:

- 1. Determining which students are 'in scope' for each measure based on their KS4 results.
- 2. Determining the 'Starting Point' score for each of those students.
- 3. Determining students' grades in qualifications taken post-16, which count for 'Progress' in English and/or maths.
- 4. Calculating the 'Progress Score' score for each of those students in simple terms:

Progress Score = Starting Point grade value – progress grade value

5. Calculate overall college score based on average of students in scope.

These calculations are currently based on the scores given in the table below:

			Grad	le achieved		
Points awarded	9-1 GCSEs	Legacy GCSEs	Functional Skills	Free Standing maths	ESOL	AQA use of maths
8	9	A*				
7.7	8					
7	7	А				
6.3	6					
6		В				
5.7	5					
5	4	С				
4	3	D	L2	L2 (all grades)	L2 (all grades)	A*/A/B/C
3	2	E				
2.5			L1	L1 (A-C)	L1 (D/M)	D/E
2		F				F
1.7				L1 (D)		
1.5					L1 (pass)	
1	1	G				G
0.8				L1 (E)		
0.4			Entry level		Entry level	

Points Scores used for 16/17, 17/18 and 18/19

Hence a student who achieves a grade 3 at KS4 (4 points) and a grade 4 at college (5 points) would achieve a progress score of +1. Conversely, students who perform worse at college would register a negative score, although these are capped at -1 e.g. if two students join a college both





with grade 3 at KS4, but achieve grades 2 and 1 while at college, they would both register a progress score of -1.

Changes to Points Scores from 2019-2020

Note that the scores above are complicated by the transition from the 'old' (A*-G) GCSE scale to the new 9-1 scale. For example, a grade 4 in a new GCSE is actually awarded 5 points in order to equate it to the old grade 'C'. The DfE announced that from the 2019-20 data onwards, the newly rebased points scores shown below are used:

Points Scores used from 19/20 onwards

			Grad	e achieved		
Points awarded	9-1 GCSEs	Legacy GCSEs	Functional Skills	Free Standing maths	ESOL	AQA use of maths
9	9					
8.5		A*				
8	8					
7	7	А				
6	6					
5.5		В				
5	5					
4	4	С				
3.5			L2			
3	3	D		L2 (all grades)	L2 (all grades)	A*/A/B/C
2	2	E	L1			
1.75				L1 (A-C)	L1 (D/M)	D/E
1.5		F				F
1.25				L1 (D)	L1 (pass)	
1	1	G				G
0.8				L1 (E)		
0.75			EL 3		EL 3	
0.5			EL 2		EL 2	
0.25			EL 1		EL 1	

These points scores have been made available by the DfE and is available for use from version 1.28 onwards (June 2021).

A system setting within OneGrade "*EM*: *Use Points Scheme from 19/20*" is set to True by default. English and Maths progress is measured using the scores specified for the 2020 performance tables. Setting the system setting to false and re-summarising will use the previous points scores prior to 2020.

Calculating the Overall College Grade

Once each student in scope for either the English and/or maths measure has had their individual score calculated based on the points tables above, the overall college score (a separate score for English and maths) is calculated as a proportion of grade boundaries by averaging individual students' scores. For example an overall English score may be calculated thus:







Student 1 English progress	= +1.0
Student 2 English progress	= +1.0
Student 3 English progress	= +0.4
Student 4 English progress	= -1.0
Student 5 English progress	= -1.0
School or college progress score	$=\frac{+1.0 + 1.0 + 0.4 - 1.0 - 1.0}{5}$
for English	b
	= +0.08 grades

3 Year Summaries

Implicit in the DfE methodology is a '3 year cycle', where students are considered as being in Year 1, Year 2 or Year 3 of the English/maths analysis, depending on their age at the start of the academic year. The notion of Y1, Y2 or Y3 is used consistently throughout the OneGrade English & maths module, as well as in this guide:

Student is 16 at start of year – they are in Year 1

Student is 17 at start of year – they are in Year 2

Student is 18 at start of year – they are in Year 3

The way in which a student's progress is measured depends on their age, prior qualifications when they first join the college (or achieved at another college), plus when they finally achieve a score of at least 5 points. All these factors affect what is taken into account as their start and end point achievement. Whilst it's relatively simple to determine a student's achievements in any given year at college, it's a much more complicated task to:

- 1. keep track of a student's relevant achievements post Key Stage 4
- 2. determine the starting point score for any given year.

In the development of the OneGrade English & maths module, we've had to build in rules to solve the questions above. It's vital that you import a student's prior qualifications (whether at KS4 or achieved at college) as accurately as possible, including the date awarded. The system will then use the prior achievement grades and dates to determine the correct starting point as follows:

Year 1 – student is 16 at start of course, hence has just completed KS4 – the student's highest relevant KS4 grade in English and/or maths is used at starting point.

Year 2 – if the student was enrolled on English/maths at the college in Y1 and is also enrolled in Y2, their KS4 grade is once again used. This is so that performance at the college is always measured





against their point of entry, rather than being affected by other college achievements. If they are enrolled for the first time in Y2 this may well be due to them having attended a different college at age 16, hence the system uses the highest relevant prior qual it can find (note that this may still be their KS4 grade if that was higher than the grade achieved at another college).

Year 3 – several permutations may apply:

Student had **E/M enrolment** at the college **in Y1 and Y2** – use grade achieved at KS4 as QOE Student had **E/M enrolment** at the college in **Y2 but not Y1** – use same QOE as for Y2 Student had **no E/M enrolment** at the college **in Y2** (whether or not they had an E/M enrolment at the college in Y1). Again, they may have been elsewhere, so the highest relevant prior qual is used, which may or may not be their KS4 grade.





Viewing the Main Analysis Screens

Main Menu

The main data analysis screens are found under the top level menu 'English/Maths':

OneGra	ade from Total Col	lege Ltd.							
Home	Reference Data	Imported Data	Import	System Maintenance	Value Added	Eng	lish / Maths		
Home							Import	- • I	
							Reference Data	• •	
	DNE(DR A	DE				Imported Data	•	
				-			Analysis	•	InYear Analysis - Student
You are	e logged in as: And	drew							InYear Analysis - Enrolment
Syste	m Information a	and Status:		Late	st Highlights				DfE 3Yr Analysis
Databa	ase Connection:	OK		Lates Lates	t CA National Da t L3VA National [ta Data		L	
Databa	ase Name:	OneGrade							
	10 C								

There are 3 main data analysis screens:

InYear Analysis - Student: presents a row of data per student at the college

InYear Analysis – Enrolment: presents a row of data per English or maths enrolment at the college

DfE 3Yr Analysis: presents a view of the college's English/maths data over a 3 year period

Each of the 3 data analysis screens consists of some display options and a Summarise button. Alongside the Summarise button is the date and time the summary was last generated. After importing data or altering any grade mappings, the summary should be regenerated to reflect any changes.



If you wish to ignore English Literature from counting towards the English entry score, the system setting "EM: Ignore English Literature Only Quals when calculating Entry score" should be set to True. (Note that any QOE qualification that has Literature *and* Language in the title will still count towards the entry score.)

Each of these screens will now be described in turn.





InYear Analysis - Student

This screen can be set to show either English or maths students studying any qualification which puts them in scope for either measure. Examination of the screen below (English enrolments in 2018/19) highlights the '3 year' approach mentioned in the last section. Note how the students' age, current year (16 is Yr1, 17 is Yr2, 18 is Yr3, >=19 is 19+) and prior attainment are all clearly shown:

OneGrade	e from Total College	Ltd.													
Home R	Reference Data Im	ported Data Import	System Maintenance	Value Added Englis	h / Maths										
Home In Ye	ear English/Maths Analy	vsis - Student													
This screen u or mapped sin Academic Y	server uses summated dds. Pary dds har ban ingoldd Sammareo saped since the last summatuation please press the Summarie button: Show Errolment Info sademic Year 12/19 v Eng / Maths Show DE Hot Show Show Point 1 Point 3 Point 3 Point 1 Latest We Wit: Point 1 Point 3 Point 2 Point 4 Point 1 Latest														
	Туре	Academic Year ID	Student Ref	Sumame	A Forenames	Age On 31Aug	Current Year	Prior Attainment KS4	Start Points	QOE Start Grade	QOE Start QualType	Start Info			
Details	English	18/19	2010/148	Alexand and a second se	Anather Dente	18	Yr3	3.00	4.00	4	GCSE	START: Y3 QOE			
Details	English	18/19	10102107	Ares	Repar	16	Yr1	4.00	4.00	4	GCSE	START: KS4			
Details	English	18/19	10147942	Ann	144	16	Yr1	2.00	2.00	2	GCSE	START: KS4			
Details	English	18/19	10146275	Anna	Rohad Janes	17	Yr2	3.00	3.00	3	GCSE	START: KS4			
Details	English	18/19	101444500	Aug.	No.	18	Yr3		0.25	1	Entry FS	START: Y3 QOE (no Y2 QOE)			
Details	English	18/19	1010303	Autor	(Date)	17	Yr2		0.00	N	GCSE	START: Y2 QOE			
Details	English	18/19	801988071	Anderson	Oter	16	Yr1	3.00	3.00	3	GCSE	START: KS4			
Details	English	18/19	10107080	Anderson	1 pine	18	Yr3	2.00	2.00	E	GCSE	START: Y2 QOE			
Details	English	18/19	10100707	Anderson	ine .	16	Yr1	1.00	1.00	1	GCSE	START: KS4			
Details	English	18/19	27145546	Audator	land .	16	Yr1	1.00	1.00	1	GCSE	START: KS4			
Details	English	18/19	10152740	Appleton	Robal	16	Yr1	3.00	3.00	3	GCSE	START: KS4			
Details	English	18/19	20140210	Androden	Refe	17	Yr2	3.00	3.00	3	GCSE	START: KS4			
Details	English	18/19	101-mark10	Andrey	falsets	18	Yr3		0.00	N	GCSE	START: Y3 QOE			
Details	English	18/19	10112-002	And	Ently Palace	16	Yr1	4.00	4.00	4	GCSE	START: KS4			
Details	English	18/19	10101014	And .	ine .	16	Yr1	1.00	1.00	1	GCSE	START: KS4			
			and the second s							-					

The list above presents a varied mixture of students of different ages, with different prior qualifications and current enrolments. In each case you can clearly see the data being used to determine their starting point for the measure in the column called 'Start Info', plus the best potential progress score which they could achieve given their current enrolment.

For example, the first student was 16 at the start of the academic year, which makes them a Y1 student, and we simply use their best English grade achieved at KS4 for their starting point. This was a grade '3' which gives them a starting point score of 4 points. Slightly worryingly however, the right hand columns show that the maximum available score on their current enrolment is also 4 points. If we click the 'Details' button we can examine this further. On the 'Quals on Entry' tab we can see the prior English qualifications used to determine the starting point:

Details	English	h 18/19		3015	6492	30156492	Student	16	Yr1		4.00	4.0	90 9	START: KS4	4.00		
Details	English			18/19	3015	6/91	30156/91	Student	18		Yr3		0.4	10		2.50	
Details	English	Engl	lish /	Maths InYear	r Analysis De	tails - 3015649	2 Student 30156492										
Details	English		Enroln	ents Quals (on Entry												
Details	English	LŰ		Show All Quals On Entry for this student													
Details	English				on Enay for a									Awarded			
Details	English			Academic Year ID	Year	Learning Aim Ref	Learning Aim Ref Title		Grade	Mapped Grade	Cappe Points	d Da Av	ite varded	Academic	PriorAttainmen Awarded Year	Eng Mat Type	
Details	English		•	18/19	Yr1	60142923	GCSE (9-1) in English Lar	nguage	3	3	4.00	23/	/08/2018	17/18	KS4	English	
Details	English			18/19	Yr1	60144476	GCSE (9-1) in English Lite	erature	3	3	4.00	23	/08/2018	17/18	KS4	English	
Dataila	Taultak.																

On the 'Enrolments' tab we can see that they are currently enrolled on Functional Skills English:

Eng	nglish / Maths InYear Analysis Details - 30156492 Student 30156492															
	Enrolments Quals on Entry															
	Show All Enrolments for this student															
		Academic Year ID	Year	Learning Aim Ref	Learning Aim Ref Title	Enrolme Grade	Capped Points	Complet ID	Completion Status	Outcome ID	Outco Descr	WD Num Days After Start	Approved	Maximum Available Points	Start Date	Actual End Date
	۲	18/19	Yr1	50093186	Functional Skills qualification in English			1	Continu				Y	4.00	25/03/2019	





In this example it would seem wise to examine the decision to enrol that student on a Functional Skills qualification as opposed to GCSE English, given that they achieved a grade 3 in English at KS4.

The second row of data shows a student in a very different situation, an 18 year old 'Y3' student with no prior English qualification at KS4. However we can see that they achieved Functional Skills in English at Entry Level 3 in the previous academic year, which gives them a starting point of 0.40 points. As this was achieved in Y2, this is classed as a 'Y3 QOE' starting point:

Details	English		18/19	Ð	301564	191	30156491	Student	18		Yr3		0.40	START: Y	'3 QOE	2.50
Details	E	5 E Z KA		A	1. D. J. 1	156401.0	Laut 2015 (101									
Details	E		ths in rea	ir Anaiy:	sis Detalls - 30	1100491 Stud	ient 30100491									^
Details	EE	Enrolmen	s Quals	on Entry												
Details	E	Shov	All Quals	On Entr	y for this studer	nt										
Details	E	Ac	ademic		Learning				Mapped	Capped	Date		Awarded	PriorAttainment	Eng Mat	
Details	Е	Ye	ar ID	Year	Aim Ref	Learning Aim	n Ref Title	Grade	Grade	Points	Award	ed	Academic Year	Awarded Year	Туре	
Details	Е	18.	19	Yr3	50084641	Functional S	Skills Qualification in English	at E3	3	0.40	01/07/	2018 1	17/18	Yr2 (Y3 QOE)	English	

As their current enrolment is a L1 Functional Skill, this gives them a potential achievement score of 2.50 and thus a 'Max Potential Progress' score of 2.1:

	Туре	A	caden D	nic Year	Stu	udent Ref	~	Surname	Forenames		Age Or 31Aug	•	Current Year	Prior Attainn KS4	nent	Start Points	Start In	fo	Max Enrol	Avail Pts	Max Potential Progress
Details	English	18	3/19		301	156492		30156492	Student		16		Yr1	4.00	4	4.00	START	Г: KS4	4.00		0.00
Details	English	18	3/19		301	156491		30156491	Student		18		Yr3		(0.40	START	T: Y3 QOI	E 2.50		2.10
Details	English	F	liele /																		
Details	English	Eng		h / Maths InYear Analysis Details - 30156491 Student 30156491 💌																	
Details	English		Enrol	ments Qu	als on	Entry															
Details	English		🗆 S	Show All En	rolmen	ts for this stude	ent														
Details	English															WD				A	
Details	English			Academic Year ID	Year	Learning Aim Ref	Lei	arning Aim Ref Title		Enrolme Grade	Capped Points	Complet ID	Completion Status	Outcome ID	Outcome Description	Days	Approve	Available Deiste	Start Date	End	
Details	English															Start		Points		Date	
Details	English		•	18/19	Yr3	50093198	Fur	nctional Skills qualification	in English			1	Continu				Y	2.50	04/02/20		

Hence this seems like an appropriate current enrolment for that student, as do these below, where we have Y2 students enrolled on GCSE English (maximum potential 8 points):

	Туре	Academic Year ID	Student Ref 🛛 🔻	Surname	Forenames	Age On 31Aug	Current Year	Prior Attainment KS4	Start Points	Start Info	Max Avail Enrol Pts	Max Potential Progress
Details	English	18/19	30152493	30152493	Student	17	Yr2	3.00	4.00	START: Y2 QOE	8.00	4.00
Details	English	18/19	30152330	30152330	Student	17	Yr2	4.00	4.00	START: Y2 QOE	8.00	4.00
Details	English	18/19	30152328	30152328	Student	17	Yr2	4.00	4.00	START: Y2 QOE	8.00	4.00

In this case the QOE tab shows us clearly that having initially joined the college with a GCSE grade 2 gained in KS4, this student then achieved grade 3 in English while in Y1:

	Туре		Ac ID	ademic Year	Stude	nt Ref	Sur	mame	Forenames		Age On 31Aug	Current Year	Prior Attainm KS4	ent Start Points	Start	Info	Max Avail Enrol Pts	Max Potenti Progre
Details	English		18	/19	3015	2493	301	152493	Student		17	Yr2	3.00	4.00	STAF	RT: Y2 QOE	8.00	4.00
Details	English			40	0.045		0.04	50000	<u>~ · · ·</u>				1.00	1.00	074	THOOP	0.00	
Details	English	Engl	ish /	Maths InYea	r Analysi	s Details - 30	15249	93 Student 30152493										×
Details	English		Enrol	ments Quals	on Entry													
Details	English	1 [Show All Quals	On Entry	for this studen												
Details	English												0		Awarded	Distant	- H-1	-
Details	English			Year ID	Year	Aim Ref		Learning Aim Ref Title		G	rade	Grade	Points	Awarded	Academic Year	Awarded Yea	r Type	
Details	English		۲	18/19	Yr2	601429	23	GCSE (9-1) in Englis	h Language	2		2	3.00	24/08/2017	16/17	KS4	English	
Details	English			18/19	Yr2	601444	76	GCSE (9-1) in Englis	h Literature	2		2	3.00	24/08/2017	16/17	KS4	English	
Details	English			18/19	Yr2	601429	23	GCSE (9-1) in Englis	h Language	2		2	3.00	11/01/2018	17/18	Yr1 (Y2 Q	English	
Details	English			18/19	Yr2	601429	23	GCSE (9-1) in Englis	h Language	3		3	4.00	23/08/2018	17/18	Yr1 (Y2 Q	English	
	F 111																	

However, the Enrolments tab shows us that this must have been achieved at another college, as there is no English enrolment for 17/18:





glish ,	/ Maths In	Year A	nalysis Deta	ils - 30152493 Student 30	152493										
Enro	ments Qu	ials on	Entry												
	Show All Er	nrolmen	ts for this stud	<mark>dent</mark>											
	Academic Year ID	Year	Learning Aim Ref	Learning Aim Ref Title	Enrolment Grade	Capped Points	Completio ID	Completion Status	Outcome ID	Outcome Description	WD Num Days After Start	Approved	Maximum Available Points	Start Date	Actual End Date
►	18/19	Yr2	60148366	GCSE (9-1) in English			2	Completed	8	Not Known		Y	8.00	20/09/2018	12/06/2019

And hence that grade 3 (4 points), as it was achieved elsewhere, becomes their starting point for their Y2 English enrolment at this new college. If it had been achieved at the same college in Y1, then the starting point would have remained as the grade 2 (3 points) achieved at KS4, as the progress measure needs to calculate the total progress made at any given institution.

Comparing DfE Data with College Data

On the right of this screen we can see if any of the currently enrolled students have previously been included in the DfE English or maths measure (as this is imported by the college). Whilst this would not normally be expected to be the case, it's useful to be able to compare previously reported DfE data with your own in-year analysis:

DfE 3Yr Progress	DfE 3Yr Progress Year	DfE 3Yr In Measure?	College vs DfE Progress	DfE Baseline Points	DfE Highest Points
-1.00	17/18	Yes		4.00	2.50
0.50	17/18	Yes		2.00	2.50
-1.00	17/18	Yes	0.00	3.00	0.40
1.00	17/18	Yes		3.00	4.00
2.10	17/18	Yes	1.50	0.40	2.50

These green DfE columns can be toggled by ticking / unticking the "Show DfE Info" checkbox.

Show Enrolment Info

Finally on this screen, remembering that there is a single row per student and that students can have multiple English and/or maths enrolments in a given academic year, we can tick to show some basic data on the number of enrolments per student:

0	OneGrade	from Total College	Ltd.																	
н	ome R	eference Data Im	ported Data Impo	ort System Main	ntenance Value Added	English / Maths														
Hor	ne In Ye	ar English/Maths Anal	ysis - Student																	
Thi or n Ac	s screen u napped sir ademic Ye	ses summarised data. Ice the last summarisat	If any data has been in ion please press the S g / Maths English \	mported ummarise button:	Show Enrolment Info	Summarise Show	Last Updated:18/07/2022 In Year VA: Point 1	10:12:44	Point5 [Point7	Point9 F Point10 F	^t oint11 🗆 La	stest							
		Туре	Academic Year ID	Student Ref	Sumame 4	Forenames	Age On 31Aug	Current Year	Prior Attainment KS4	Start Points	QOE Start Grade	QOE Start QualType	Start Info	Max Avail Enrol Pts	Max Potential Progress	Num Cont	Num Comp	Num WD	Num WD Days	Num Approved
۲	Details	English	18/19	analia .	Adams	ille .	17	Yr2		0.25	1	Entry FS	START: Y2 QOE (2.00	1.75			1	130	1
	Details	English	18/19	10154542	Agrees	(Instru-	16	Yr1	0.00	0.00	N	GCSE	START: KS4	2.00	2.00		1			1
	Dctails	English	18/19	10101140	Alexand and a second se	Anather Dente	18	Yr3	3.00	4.00	4	GCSE	START: Y3 QOE	9.00	5.00		1			1
	Details	English	18/19	10102107	Aren	Repar	16	Yr1	4.00	4.00	4	GCSE	START: KS4	9.00	5.00		1			1
	Details	English	18/19	2010/042	Also .	144	16	Yr1	2.00	2.00	2	GCSE	START: KS4	9.00	7.00		1			1
	Details	English	18/19	204275	Alexand Section 1.	Robal Janes	17	Yr2	3.00	3.00	3	GCSE	START: KS4	9.00	6.00		1			1
	Details	English	18/19	10144500	And I	Mad .	18	Yr3		0.25	1	Entry FS	START: Y3 QOE (2.00	1.75	1				1
	Details	English	18/19	101000	Anders	(then	17	Yr2		0.00	N	GCSE	START: Y2 QOE	3.50	3.50		1			1
	Details	English	18/19	80188871	Anderson	Own	16	Yr1	3.00	3.00	3	GCSE	START: KS4	9.00	6.00			1	7	1
	Details	English	18/19	1010700	Anderson	Cyber .	18	Yr3	2.00	2.00	E	GCSE	START: Y2 QOE	3.50	1.50			1	304	1
	Details	English	18/19	1010707	Automati	Last.	16	Yr1	1.00	1.00	1	GCSE	START: KS4	0.75	-0.25		1			1
	Details	English	18/19	2710246	Redator	Danal	16	Yr1	1.00	1.00	1	GCSE	START: KS4	9.00	8.00		1			1
	Details	English	18/19	10102740	Auditor	Robust	16	Yr1	3.00	3.00	3	GCSE	START: KS4	9.00	6.00		1			1

This provides a link with the 'InYear Analysis – Enrolment' screen which will be examined next.





InYear Analysis – Enrolment

In this screen we see a row per enrolment in either English or maths in a given academic year (as any given student may have more than one enrolment in an academic year). As such, the screen includes enrolment level data such as start/end dates, course codes, completion IDs etc. Where an enrolment is completed with a grade, an indicated progress score is also included. Note that we again see a 'Start Info' column which applies the same rules as explained in the previous section.

0	OneGrad	e from Tota	al College L	td.) X
Hor	me Re	eference Da	ata Impo	orted Data	Import S	ystem Maintenance Va	lue Add	ed English	/ Maths																			
Home	e In Yea	ar English/N	laths Analysis	s - Student E	inglish/Maths	Analysis - Enrolment																						
This :	screen us	ses summari:	sed data. If a	any data has b	een imported		ummarise	Last Up	dated:18/07/2	022 10:12:44																		
or ma	apped sin	ce the last s	ummarisation	n please press t	he Summaris	e button:		InYear	VA: D Point	1 Point3	D Pa	int5	Point7	Point9	Point													
Acad	demic Yea	ar 18/19	✓ Eng /	Maths Englis	sh 🗸 🗌	Show DfE Info		0	Point	2 Point4		int6	Point8 [Point1) D Point	12	Latest											
									Planned						Driver		005	005		Max	Max							
		Туре	Academic Year ID	Age On 31Aug	Learning Aim Ref	Title	Level	Start Date	End Date	Actual End Date	Comple ID	Outcom	Course Code	Current Year	Attainment KS4	Start Points	Start Grade	Start QualTyp	Start	Avail Enrol Pts	Potential Progress	Target Grade	Target Points	Enrolment Grade	Mapped Grade	Enrol Pts	Progres	Progres
F I	Details	English	18/19	CA E 17	500931	Functional Skills qualific	1	03/09/2018	24/06/2019	11/01/2019	3	3	W059	Yr2		0.25	1	Entry	START	2.00	1.75	Ρ	2.00			-1.00	-1.25	-1.00
	Details	English	18/19	: # E 16	500931	Functional Skills qualific	1	25/02/2019	28/06/2019	28/06/2019	2	1	W059	Yr1	0.00	0.00	N	GCSE	START	2.00	2.00	Ρ	2.00	PA	Ρ	2.00	2.00	2.00
	Details	English	18/19	1 A J 18	601483	GCSE (9-1) in English La	2	03/09/2018	28/06/2019	12/06/2019	2	1	W003	Yr3	3.00	4.00	4	GCSE	START	9.00	5.00	5	5.00	4	4	4.00	0.00	0.00
	Details	English	18/19	: # 1 16	601483	GCSE (9-1) in English La	2	03/09/2018	14/06/2019	12/06/2019	2	1	W003	Yr1	4.00	4.00	4	GCSE	START	9.00	5.00	5	5.00	4	4	4.00	0.00	0.00
	Details	English	18/19	: # 1 16	601483	GCSE (9-1) in English La	2	03/09/2018	14/06/2019	12/06/2019	2	1	W003	Yr1	2.00	2.00	2	GCSE	START	9.00	7.00	3	3.00	2	2	2.00	0.00	0.00
	Details	English	18/19	1AT 17	601483	GCSE (9-1) in English La	2	07/09/2018	28/06/2019	12/06/2019	2	1	W003	Yr2	3.00	3.00	3	GCSE	START	9.00	6.00	4	4.00	3	3	3.00	0.00	0.00
	Details	English	18/19	: A 1 18	500931	Functional Skills qualific	1	04/09/2018	28/06/2019		1		W059	Yr3		0.25	1	Entry	START	2.00	1.75	Р	2.00					
	Details	English	18/19	1 A E 17	500931	Functional Skills qualific	2	20/09/2018	21/12/2018	02/01/2019	2	3	F017	Yr2		0.00	N	GCSE	START	3.50	3.50	Р	3.50			-1.00	-1.00	-1.00
1	Details	English	18/19	: A C 16	601483	GCSE (9-1) in English La	2	03/09/2018	14/06/2019	10/09/2018	3	3	W003	Yr1	3.00	3.00	3	GCSE	START	9.00	6.00	4	4.00			-1.00	-4.00	-1.00

This screen displays Target Grade and Target Points columns in yellow. The Target Grade is set to be one grade higher than the grade representing the Start Points. For example, if a GCSE student has 2.5 Start Points, the Target Grade will be 2 (3.0 points).

If no Start Points are available, the enrolment is given a Target grade of the lowest available grade worth more than 0 points.

Where a Student has previous Entry Level Functional Skills qualifications (graded "1", "2", or "3") and is enrolled on another Entry Level FS qualification, the Target Grade will be set to one grade above the previous achievement. (Even though the points are the same – i.e. 0.4)

Once again, DfE data is included if it is available, on the right hand side of the screen:

DfE 3Yr Progress	DfE 3Yr Progress Year	DfE 3Yr In Measure?	College vs DfE Progress	DfE Baseline Points	DfE Highest Points
-1.00	17/18	Yes		3.00	0.40
-1.00	17/18	Yes	0.50	3.00	0.40
-1.00	17/18	Yes		4.00	2.50
-0.50	17/18	Yes		3.00	2.50
0.00	17/18	Yes		4.00	4.00
0.50	17/18	Yes		2.00	2.50

The columns can be toggled by ticking / unticking the "Show DfE Info" checkbox.

The 'Details' screens again show relevant enrolments and QOE data for the student:

	Туре	e	Academic Year ID	Student Ref	Sumame	Forenames	Age On Learn 31Aug Aim F	ing Title			Level	Start Date	Planned End Date	Actual End Date	Com	pleti Outcor ID	Code	Currer Year	¹ Attainment KS4	Start Points
Details	Engli	lish	18/19	30137	301370	Student	18 5009	186 Fund	ional Skills	s qualificati	. 2	14/02/2019	13/10/2019		1		E085	Yr3	3.00	3.00
Details	En						7000.0	20427222												121
Details	En	Engli		s In Year	Analysis Det	ans - 3013														
Details	En	E	inrolments	Quals or	n Entry															
Details	En	E	Show A	II Enrolme	nts for this st	udent														
Details	En													WD Num						
Details	En		Acad Year I	omio Year	Learning Aim Ref	Learning	Aim Ref Title	Enrolmer	t Capped Points	Completio ID	Completio Status	n Outcome	Outcome Description	Days After	Approved	Available	Start Date		Actual End Date	
Details	En													Start		Points				
Details	En		▶ 16/1	7 Yr1	5009838)	Functio	nal Skills qualifi	EL3	0.40	2	Completer	± 1	Achieved		Y	0.40	06/09/20	16 2	28/03/2017	
Details	En		17/18	Yr2	50093198	B Functio	nal Skills qualifi			1	Continuin	9			Y	2.50	30/10/20	17		
Details	En		18/19	Yr3	50093186	Functio	nal Skills qualifi			1	Continuing	9			Y	4.00	14/02/20	19		
Details	En		18/19	Yr3	50093198	B Functio	nal Skills qualifi	PA	2.50	2	Completer	3 1	Achieved		Y	2.50	30/10/20	17 2	26/03/2019	





lish Enro	/ Maths In Ye Iments Quals	ar Analysis s on Entry	: Details - 301370	020 Student 30137020							
	Show All Qual	s On Entry f	or this student								
	Academic Year ID	Year	Learning Aim Ref	Learning Aim Ref Title	Grade	Mapped Grade	Capped Points	Date Awarded	Awarded Academic Year	PriorAttainmer Awarded Year	Eng Mat Type
۲	16/17	Yr1	60095076	GCSE in English Literature	E	E	3.00	25/08/2016	15/16	KS4	English
	16/17	Yr1	60131561	GCSE in English Language	F1	F	2.00	25/08/2016	15/16	KS4	English
	17/18	Yr2	5009838X	Functional Skills qualification in English	Pass	1	0.40	28/03/2017	16/17	Yr1 (Y2 Q	English
	17/18	Yr2	5009838X	Functional Skills qualification in English	Pass	2	0.40	28/03/2017	16/17	Yr1 (Y2 Q	English
	17/18	Yr2	5009838X	Functional Skills qualification in English	Pass	3	0.40	28/03/2017	16/17	Yr1 (Y2 Q	English

In Year Progress

If you choose to import students' 'in-year' grades e.g. from ProMonitor markbook or another equivalent tracking system, these can be displayed against students' starting points to give an indication of potential in-year progress at student and cohort level. If a valid grade is imported, OneGrade English/maths will convert the grade to a points score and perform the calculation:

OneGrad	de from Tot	al College Lt	d.																										-		×
Home F	eference D	ata Impor	ted Data	Import	System Maintenance	Value Ad	Ided Englis	h / Maths																							
ome In Ye	ar English/1	Aaths Analysis	- Student E	English/Math	ns Analysis - Enrolment InY	ear Grad	e Settings																								
his screen u	ises summar	ised data. If a	ny data has b	ieen importe	d 📕	Summari	an Last D	odated 18/07/	2022 10:12:44																						
r mapped sir	nce the last :	ummarisation	please press	the Summar	ise button:		InYea		t1 Point	3 🗆 1	Point 5	Point7	Point	9 Point1	1																
cademic Ye	ar 19/20	✓ Eng / I	Maths Engle	sh ∨ ∣	Show DfE Info	Show		Poir	t2 Point	4 🗆 1	Point6	Point8	Point	10 D Point 1	12 Lat	est															
	Туре	Academic Year ID	Age On 31Aug	Learning Aim Ref	Tide	Level	Start Date	Planned End Date	Actual End Date	Comple ID	Outcor	n Course Code	Current Year	Teaching Group Code	Prior Attainmer KS4	t Start Points	QOE Start Grade	QOE Start QuelTyp	Start Info	Max Avail Enrol Pts	Max Potential Progress	Target Grade	Target Points	Enrolment Grade	Mapped Grade	Enrol Pts	Progress	Capped Progres	IY Grade Most Recent	IY Points Most Recent	IY Progre Most Recen
Details	English	19/20		601483	GCSE (9-1) in English La.	. 2	02/09/2019	26/06/2020		1		W003	Yr1	W003L305	5.00	5.00	5	GCSE	START	9.00	4.00	6	6.00						6	6.00	1.00
Details	English	19/20	16	601483	GCSE (9-1) in English La.	. 2	02/09/2019	12/06/2020	03/09/2019	3	3	W003	Yr1	W003L305	3.00	3.00	3	GCSE	START	9.00	6.00	4	4.00			-1.00	-4.00	-1.00			
Details	English	19/20	118	601483	GCSE (9-1) in English La.	. 2	10/09/2019	12/06/2020		1		W003	Yr3	W003L305	2.00	3.00	3	GCSE	START	9.00	6.00	4	4.00						6	6.00	3.00
Details	English	19/20	117	601483	GCSE (9-1) in English La.	. 2	02/09/2019	12/06/2020		1		W003	Yr2	W003L305	3.00	3.00	3	GCSE	START	9.00	6.00	4	4.00						5	5.00	2.00
Details	English	19/20	1117	601483	GCSE (9-1) in English La.	. 2	02/09/2019	12/06/2020		1		W003	Yr2	W003L305	3.00	3.00	3	GCSE	START	9.00	6.00	4	4.00						4	4.00	1.00
Details	English	19/20	. 16	601483	GCSE (9-1) in English La.	. 2	02/09/2019	09/06/2020		1		W003	Yr1	W003L305	3.00	3.00	3	GCSE	START	9.00	6.00	4	4.00						4	4.00	1.00
Details	English	19/20	: (16	601483	GCSE (9-1) in English La.	. 2	02/09/2019	12/06/2020		1		W003	Yr1	W003L305	3.00	3.00	3	GCSE	START	9.00	6.00	4	4.00						4	4.00	1.00
Details	English	19/20	1116	601483	GCSE (9-1) in English La.	. 2	02/09/2019	09/06/2020		1		W003	Yr1	W003L305	3.00	3.00	3	GCSE	START	9.00	6.00	4	4.00						5	5.00	2.00
Details	English	19/20	III 16	601483	GCSE (9-1) in English La.	. 2	16/09/2019	12/06/2020		1		W003	Yr1	W003L305	3.00	3.00	3	GCSE	START	9.00	6.00	4	4.00						3	3.00	0.00
Details	English	19/20	1, 16	601483	GCSE (9-1) in English La	. 2	02/09/2019	12/06/2020		1		W003	Yr1	W003L305	3.00	3.00	3	GCSE	START	9.00	6.00	4	4.00						1	1.00	-1.00
Details	English	19/20	1117	601483	GCSE (9-1) in English La	. 2	02/09/2019	12/06/2020		1		W003	Yr2	W003L305	3.00	3.00	3	GCSE	START	9.00	6.00	4	4.00						4	4.00	1.00
Details	English	19/20	116	601483	GCSE (9-1) in English La.	. 2	02/09/2019	12/06/2020		1		W003	Yr1	W003L305	4.00	4.00	4	GCSE	START	9.00	5.00	5	5.00						3	3.00	-1.00
Details	English	19/20	17	601483	GCSE (9-1) in English La.	. 2	03/09/2019	12/06/2020	23/09/2019	3	3	W003	Yr2	W003L305		3.00	3	GCSE	START	9.00	6.00	4	4.00			-1.00	-4.00	-1.00			

Note that up to 12 in-year points are available for this purpose.

Target Grades

If you want to use prior qualifications in English and/or maths to set target grades for students undertaking GCSE retakes, these can be generated by running a view on the table which contains the enrolment starting point data. Approaches to this will vary from college to college, but it's very easy to extract data from the relevant table (dbo. EngMat_Enrolment_InYear). For example, a simple script to take the starting point score and add a point to give a target grade might look like this:

```
SELECT [StudentRef]
      ,[CourseCode]
      ,[StartPoints]
       ,[StartPoints]+1 as TargetGrade
   FROM [OneGrade].[dbo].[EngMat_Enrolment_InYear]
   WHERE AcademicYearID = '18/19'
   and not StartPoints is null
   and CompletionID = 1
  6
Results Ressages
 StudentRef
           CourseCode StartPoints TargetGrade
  30117206 W059
                                3.00
                      2.00
  30117207
          W059
                      3.00
                                4.00
  30117209
           E092
                      4.00
                                5.00
```

2.00

3.00



W059

30117212



DfE 3 Year Analysis

This screen shows a full 3 year overview based on a given 'Claim Year' i.e. the year in which we are expecting the students in view to be included in the DfE national data.

Firstly we select the 'Claim Year' we wish to view, in this case 18/19. Within this claim year we may have some Y1 students, who were by definition 16 years old at the start of 18/19 and achieve 5 points or more – hence they become in scope for the 18/19 Claim Year:

	Claim Year	15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 OR 2	20/21	Eng / M	laths English Show	This s If any mappi please	creen uses sui data has beer ed since the la e press the Sur	mmarise importe st summ mmarise	ed data. ed or narisation button:	Sum	nmarise	Last U	pdated:29	/09/2019	09:50:01	
		Туре	Academic Year ID	Student Ref	Surname 🔺	Forenames	Age On 31Aug	Currer Year	ls Enrolled?	Yr1 Age16 Is Enrolled?	Yr1 Age16 AcYr	Yr1 Start Pts	Vr1 End Pts	Yr1 Age16 Progress Pts	Yr1 Age16 Capped Progress Pts	Yr1 Age16 Progress Info
	Details	English	18/19	30152581	Bulge	Endy Califin	16	Yr1	Y	Y	18/19	4.00	2.50	-1.50	-1.00	END: Y1 Pts, START: KS4
	Details	English	18/19	30148962	Balan	Harry John	16	Yr1	Y	Y	18/19	5.00	5.00	0.00	0.00	END: Y1 Pts, START: KS4
	Details	English	18/19	30150608	Baller	Daniel Peter	16	Yr1	Y	Y	18/19	1.00	2.50	1.50	1.50	END: Y1 Pts, START: KS4
107																

Note that in the right hand column above, you are provided with information explaining how the end and starting points were determined.

In the same screen we will also see Y2 students, who were 17 at the start of academic year 18/19:

Claim Year	15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 OR	20/21	Eng / M	aths English	This s If any mapp please	creen uses su data has beer ed since the la e press the Sur	mmarise n importe ist summ mmarise	d data. d or arisation button:	Sum	marise	Last U	pdated:29	/09/2019	09:50:01								
	Туре	Academic Year ID	Student Ref	Sumame 🔺	Forenames	Age On 31Aug	Curren Year	ls Enrolled?	Yr1 Age16 Is Enrolled?	Yr1 Age16 AcYr	Yr1 Start Pts	Yr1 End Pts	Yr1 Age16 Progress Pts	Yr1 Age16 Capped Progress Pts	Yr1 Age16 Progress Info	Yr2 Age17 Is Enrolled	Yr2 Age17 AcYr	Yr2 Start Pts	Yr2 End Pts	Yr2 Age17 Progres: Pts	Yr2 Age17 Capped Progress Pts	Yr2 Age17 Progress Info
Details	English	18/19	10.496	Care .	Repo	17	Yr2	Y	N	17/18	0.00					Y	18/19	0.00	2.50	2.50	2.50	END: Y2 Pts, START: KS4
Detail	English	18/19	214730	Deser .	Test	17	Yr2	Y	N	17/18	4.00					Y	18/19	4.00	-1.00	-5.00	-1.00	END: Y2 Pts, START: Y2 QOE
Details	English	18/19	10.4654	Date	(and	17	Yr2	Y	Y	17/18	5.00	4.00	-1.00	-1.00	END: Y1 Pts, START: KS4	Y	18/19	5.00	5.00	0.00	0.00	END: Y2 Pts, START: KS4
Detail	English	18/19	1014030	Datase	Carrow	17	Yr2	Y	N	17/18	3.00					Y	18/19	3.00	-1.00	-4.00	-1.00	END: Y2 Pts, START: KS4
Details	English	18/19	214014	Citize .	Laste	17	Yr2	Y	Y	17/18	3.00	3.00	0.00	0.00	END: Y1 Pts, START: KS4	Y	18/19	3.00	-1.00	-4.00	-1.00	END: Y2 Pts, START: KS4

In the example above, three of the students were not enrolled on English qualifications in Year 1 (as 16 year olds), but were in Year 2. This could be because they were not enrolled on a CoF-qualifying qualification (maybe enrolled on an internal qualification) or they only enrolled at college aged 17. The Information column at the far right shows the origin of the End and Start points.

Pressing the details button gives us more information about the Quals on Entry and the Enrolments for the record:

		Туре	Academic Year ID	Student Ref	Sumam	e 🔺	Forenames	Age On 31Aug	Currer Year	Is Enrolled?	Yr1 Age16 Is Enrolled?	Yr1 Age16 AcYr	Yr1 Start Pts	Yr1 End Pts	Yr1 Age16 Progress Pts	Yr1 Age16 Capped Progress Pts	Yr1 Age16 Progres	is Info	Yr2 Age17 Is Enrolled	Yr2 Age17 AcYr	Yr2 Start Pts	Yr2 End Pts	Yr2 Age17 Progres: Pts	Yr2 Age17 Capped Progres: Pts	Yr2 Age17 Progre	ess Info
	Details	English	18/19	30145658	Danies		Megan	17	Yr2	Y	N	17/18	0.00						Y	18/19	0.00	2.50	2.50	2.50	END: Y2 Pts, S	TART: KS4
Þ.	Details	English	18/19	30147585	(new		Terri	17	Yr2	Y	N	17/18	4.00						Y	18/19	4.00	-1.00	-5.00	-1.00	END: Y2 Pts, S	TART: Y2 QOE
	Details	English	18/19	30146541	Date		L	-Maria Arrahari	Data			-														TART: KS4
	Details	English	18/19	30140303	Dates	Eng	lish / iviaths i	n Year Anaiysi	s Detai																	TART: KS4
	Details	English	18/19	30140148	Dist	1	Enrolments 0	auls on Entry																		TART: KS4
	Details	English	18/19	30140382	Dept		Academ	ic y		Learning							Mapped	Capped	Date		Awarde	d Pri	iorAttainme	nt Eng	Mat	TART: KS4
	Details	English	18/19	30142509	Dates		Year ID	Tear		Aim Ref	Learn	ing Aim Re	a nue			Grade	Grade	Points	Awa	rded	Year	A	warded Year	Тур	•	TART: Y2 QOE
	Details	English	18/19	30144580	Delle		▶ 18/19	Yr2	6	60145055	GCSE	E (9-1) in E	English La	nguage		3P	3	4.00	23/0	8/2017	16/17	KS	4	Eng	lish	TART: KS4
	Details	English	18/19	30140013	Dest:		18/19	Yr2	(0145055	GCSE	E (9-1) in E	Englieh La	nguage		3P	3	4.00	10/0	1/2018	17/18	Yr1	1 (Y2 QOE	i) Eng	lieh	TART. KS4
	Details	English	18/19	30146701	Dates		18/19	Yr2	(60145055	GCSE	E (9-1) in B	English La	nguage		3P	3	4.00	22/0	8/2018	17/18	Yr1	1 (Y2 QOE	E) Eng	lish	TART: KS4
	Details	English	18/19	30140286	Dates		18/19	Yr2	(60152461	GCSE	E (9-1) in B	English Lit	erature		3	3	4.00	23/0	8/2017	16/17	KS	4	Eng	lish	TART: KS4
	Details	English	18/19	21640	Enter		18/19	Yr2	(60152461	GCSE	E (9-1) in B	English Lit	erature		3	3	4.00	22/0	8/2018	17/18	Yr1	1 (Y2 QOE	E) Eng	lish	TART: Y2 QOE





In this particular case, the student was not enrolled at college in Yr1 (Aged 16). We have Quals on Entry information from KS4 and Yr1 however (The student must have studied elsewhere in Yr1). The highest number of points is 4.00 and the most recent is from Yr1.

Looking at the Enrolment(s), this particular student has one record in 18/19 (Aged 17, Yr2). As the record shows that the student withdrew after 42 days with no achievement, the student is given a capped progress score of -1.

		Туре	Academic Year ID	Student Ref	Sumam	• ^	Forename	Age On 31Aug	Curre Year	n Is Enrolled	Yr1 Age16 Is Enrolled?	Yr1 Age16 AcYr	Yr1 Start Pts	Yr1 End Pts	Yr1 Age16 Progress Pts	Yr1 Age16 Capped Progress Pts	Yr1 Age	e16 Progres:	s Info	Yr2 Age17 Is Enrolled	Yr2 Age17 AcYr	Yr2 Start Pts	Yr2 End Pts	Yr2 Age17 Progres: Pts	Yr2 Age17 Capped Progres: Pts	Yr2 Age17 Progr	ess Info
	Details	English	18/19	30145658	Davies		Megan	17	Yr2	Y	Ν	17/18	0.00							Y	18/19	0.00	2.50	2.50	2.50 E	END: Y2 Pts, S	TART: KS4
۶.	Details	English	18/19	31147585	(nor		Terri	17	Yr2	Y	Ν	17/18	4.00							Y	18/19	4.00	-1.00	-5.00 -	-1.00 E	END: Y2 Pts, S	TART: Y2 QOE
	Details	English	18/19	30146541	Date	Enel	ale / Mast	- InVens Ann	Lucia Data	1																	TART: KS4
	Details	English	18/19	30146363	Dates	Engli	sn / matr	s in tear Ana																			TART: KS4
	Details	English	18/19	30140148	Dilan	E	nrolments	Quals on En	try																		TART: KS4
	Details	English	18/19	30140352	Dept															WD							TART: KS4
	Details	English	18/19	30142503	Debes		Acad Year	Year	earning Aim Ref	Learning	Aim Ref Tit	tle	Enrolm Grade	Point	ed Com s ID	pletic Con Sta	mpletion tus	Outcome ID	Outcome Description	Days	App	ovec A	vailable	Start Date	Actua End D	il late	TART: Y2 QOE
	Details	English	18/19	30144580	Deate															Start		Po	oints				TART: KS4
	Details	English	18/19	30140010	Dell		▶ 18/1	Yr2 6	0148366	GCSE (9-1) in Eng	lish Lang		-1.00	3	With	hdrawn	3	Not Achiev	141	Y	8.0	00 (03/09/2018	3 22/01	/2019	TART: KS4

The same theme continues as 18 year olds progress into the 3rd Year.

	Туре	Academic Year ID	Student Ref	Sumame A	Forenames	Age On 31Aug	Curre Year	ls Enrolled	Yr1 Age16 Is Enrolled?	Yr1 Age16 AcYr	Yr1 Start Pts	Yr1 End Pts	Yr1 Age16 Progress Pts	Yr1 Age16 Capped Progress Pts	Yr1 Age16 Progress Info	Yr2 Age17 Is Enrolled	Yr2 Age17 AcYr	Yr2 Start Pts	Yr2 End Pts	Yr2 Age17 Progress Pts	Yr2 Age17 Capped Progress Pts	Yr2 Age17 Progress Info	Yr3 Age18 Is Enrolled	Yr3 Age18 AcYr	Yr3 Start Pts	Yr3 End Pts	Yr3 Age18 Progres Pts	Yr3 Age18 Capped Progres: Pts	Yr3 Age18 Progress Info
Dctails	English	18/19	30127968	Anderson	Option	18	Yr3	Y	N	16/17	3.00					Y	17/18	3.00	2.50	0.50	0.50	END: Y2 Pts, ST	Y	18/19	3.00	2.50	0.50	0.50	END: Y3 pts, START: Y
Details	English	18/19	30117216	Advent	Danal	18	Yr3	Y	Y	16/17	3.00				END: Y1	Y	17/18	3.00	0.40	-2.60	-1.00	END: Y2 Pts, ST	Y	18/19	3.00	4.00	1.00	1.00	END: Y3 pts, START: KS4
Details	English	18/19	30107164	Attestor	San Jana -	18	Yr3	Y	Ν	16/17	4.00					Y	17/18	4.00	4.00	0.00	0.00	END: Y2 Pts, ST	Y	18/19	4.00	1.00	-3.00	-1.00	END: Y3 pts, START: KS4
Details	English	18/19	30126523	Bahan	Late Rev.	18	Yr3	Y	N	16/17	4.00					Y	17/18	4.00	4.00	0.00	0.00	END: Y2 Pts, ST	Y	18/19	4.00				END: Y3 pts, START: KS4

At this point, it is worth looking at the logic used to calculate the Start and End Points over the 3 years.

Start Points

Year 1

For students age 16 in Year 1 at college, Start Points are based on those attained in Key Stage 4 (KS4)

Year 2

For students age 17 in Year 2 at college, Start Points are based on those attained in Year 1 OR at KS4.

KS4Points	Points achieved in Year 1	Start Points for Year 2
4	3	4
3	4	4
[not known]	4	4
4	[not known]	4

Note – consider this scenario

A student has 2 points at KS4, then attends another college in Year 1 and achieves 1 point there. When the student enrols at our college for Year 2, the start points are 2 points – not 1 point, because we can only add value to the greater number of points (in this case those achieved at KS4)





Year 3

For a Student aged 18 in Year 3 at college, Start Points are based on those attained in Year 2, Year 1 OR KS4.

KS4Points	Year1 Points	Year2 Points	Start Points Year3
2	3	4	4
4	3	2	4
2	4	3	4
2	[not known]	[not known]	2
[not known]	3	4	4
2	3	[not known]	3
3	[not known]	4	4

Progress over 3 years

Further to the right of the full screen is a summary of the progress scores over the 3 years for the students:

5	Overall Progress	Capped Overall Progress	Expected Claim Year
	-3.00	-1.00	18/19
	-4.00	-1.00	18/19
	1.50	1.50	18/19

Note that the DfE cap the maximum negative progress at -1. Positive progress is not capped.

The Expected Claim Year is calculated by looking at the Age of the Student and the Years in which the Student is enrolled on Maths or English.

The calculation for progress (End Points – Start Points) over 3 years depends on the years that a student has been enrolled at the college

Y1 Enrolled?	Y2 Enrolled?	Y3 Enrolled?	Start Points	End Points
No	No	Yes	Best of Y3 QOE, Y2 QOE, KS4	Y3
No	Yes	Yes	Best of Y2 QOE, Y3 QOE, KS4	Best of Y2, Y3
Yes	No	Yes	Best of Y3 QOE, KS4	Best of Y1, Y3
Yes	Yes	Yes	KS4	Best of Y1, Y2, Y3
No	Yes	No	Best of Y2 QOE, KS4	Y2
Yes	Yes	No	Best of KS4, Y2 QOE	Best of Y1, Y2
Yes	No	No	KS4	Y1

Key:

Y3 QOE = Start Points (Quals on Entry) for Year 3

Y2 QOE = Start Points (Quals on Entry) for Year 2

KS4 = Quals achieved in Key Stage 4 = Start Points for Year 1





Note – consider this scenario

A Student who achieves 5 points in Year 1 will be out-of-scope for Years 2 and 3 and be included in the next DfE published progress measures. Similarly, if a student achieves 5 points in Year 2, they are out-of-scope for year 3.

Outcome and Completion

An enrolment that is completed and has achieved a grade in a qualification within scope will be awarded the appropriate number of Capped Points as per the DfE Progress reference data.

An enrolment that has the Outcome of "Not Achieved" (Outcome=3) will be awarded End Points: -1. However, if the System Setting "*EM: Outcome 'Not Achieved': True- Set Pts=-1, False- Set Pts=0 WHERE StartDate=EndDate, else Pts=-1*" is set to False, where OutcomeID = 3 and StartDate = EndDate, End Points will be 0.

Comparing Progress to DfE (KS5Pup) data

At the far right of the screen, in the green columns, the imported KS5Pup data is displayed which is imported from the KS5Pupxx.csv file available from the DfE tables-checking website.

Overall Progres	Capped Overall Progres	Expected Claim Year	DfE 3Yr Progres:	DfE3Yr Progress Year	DfE 3Yr In Measu	College vs DfE Progre	DfE Baselir Points	DfE Highes Points	
3.60	3.60	18/19	2.10	17/18	Yes	1.50	0.40	2.50	
-2.60	-1.00	18/19	-1.00	17/18	Yes	0.00	3.00	0.40	
-1.00	-1.00	18/19	-1.00	18/19	Yes	0.00	4.00	3.00	
0.00	0.00	18/19	0.00	18/19	Yes	0.00	4.00	4.00	
-0.50	-0.50	18/19							
-5.00	-1.00	18/19	-1.00	18/19	Yes	0.00	4.00		
-4.00	-1.00	18/19							
0.00	0.00	18/19	0.00	18/19	Yes	0.00	4.00	4.00	
2.10	2.10	18/19							
0.00	0.00	18/19	0.00	18/19	Yes	0.00	4.00	4.00	
-2.60	-1.00	18/19	-1.00	17/18	No	0.00	3.00		
-1.50	-1.00	18/19	0.00	18/19	Yes	-1.00	4.00	4.00	
-0.50	-0.50	18/19	-0.50	18/19	Yes	0.00	3.00	2.50	
		18/19	0.00	18/19	Yes		4.00	4.00	
-0.50	-0.50	18/19	-0.50	18/19	Yes	0.00	3.00	2.50	
-2.60	-1.00	18/19	-1.00	18/19	Yes	0.00	3.00	0.40	

For many records, no DfE data will be available – this will be because the student is exempt from the DfE calculations (<150 GLH, Difficulty/Disability, Overseas), that adequate data was not available to calculate progress or that the student will appear in another claim year.

In the case where the DfE Highest Points is blank, this is because the student has been awarded a progress score of -1 through non-achievement.

Note that in the top record, the DfE data is from 17/18 (included in KS5Pup18). However, the student re-enrolled at college aged 18 years old in 18/19, so we have calculated the progress should be claimed in 18/19 (KS5Pup19). In this case, the DfE have claimed a year earlier than expected.





Tables-Checking – 1 (early claims)

In October each year, the un-amended data is released. Importing the KS5Pupxx.csv data and examining the DfE 3 Year Analysis of your latest data will show any students that have been claimed for too early and have re-enrolled on the subsequent year.

The "College vs DfE Progress" column should display 0.00 if the college data agrees with the DfE data. Where there are differences, this could be explained by:

- Insufficient data has been imported into OneGrade. Missing enrolment and qualifications on entry (QOE) records / grades are examples of this.
- It could also be that enrolment grades / QOE grades have not been mapped, so the full story is not being shown see the section about Enrolment and QOE grade mapping in this guide.
- It could be that the data imported into OneGrade is more recent than the DfE data
- The DfE has used awarding body data that has not been communicated to the college.

Tables-Checking – 2 (overall matching)

After importing your latest 18/19 student, enrolment and QOE data, Import KS5Pup19.csv and ensure that as many students as possible are mapped using the "DfE Data - KS5Pup" screen. Using the DfE 3 Year Analysis screen, summarise the data. In the top left of the screen, select all claim years and press "Show". Filter the "DfE Progress Year" for 18/19. Filter the "DfE 3 Year In measure" column for Yes. At the foot of the grid, note the averages for the "DfE 3 Ty Progress" and "Overall Capped Progress". The figures may be close, but not identical. Unmapped students, missing / unmapped QOE or Enrolment grades and early DfE claims may all contribute to discrepancies.





Getting started with the OneGrade English / Maths module

The English / Maths module is an integrated part of the OneGrade system.

- 1. To activate the English / Maths module, enter an **EM** licence key into OneGrade using the licence key maintenance facility from "System Maintenance" on the main menu.
- Prepare import datasets for students, enrolments, qualifications on entry and courses. These datasets can be imported from csv files or directly from tables / views within SQL Server. These are the basic college datasets which will allow you to monitor and analyse student progress in English and Maths.
- 3. Using the Imported Data Screens for Enrolments and QOE, map any unmapped grades for qualifications that are in Scope (a qualification in scope is one that has been listed by the DfE as having CoF). Although great effort has been put into default mappings, many grades are entered with typos and random characters such as #. Over 95% of grades should be mapped by default.
- 4. Open any of the 3 analysis screens (Enrolment, Student or DfE 3 Year) and press the Summarise button. Generating the summary will take a few minutes. (Use the Database Configuration facility from "System Maintenance" on the main menu to increase the timeout to at least 600 seconds – or longer for large datasets).
- 5. One Summarised, you will be able to see Students enrolled on English and Maths qualifications, their Starting Points based on previous qualifications attained, Potential points achievable on enrolled qualifications and progress made on these qualifications either InYear progress (InYear grade dataset required to be imported) or final grade achieved.





Data Imports

The source for the Student, Enrolment, Qualifications on Entry and Course data imports is the college MI System. Data can be imported into OneGrade via SQL Server tables / views or via a text import (comma-separated, quote-delimited csv files).

The source for the KS5Pup import is an MSExcel .csv spreadsheet supplied by the DfE to each college every January. This spreadsheet contains the DfE calculated English and Maths progress for students enrolled over the previous 3 academic years.

Why are English / Maths imports different to the VA imports?

The Value Added data imports concentrate on Level 2 and Level 3 enrolments. The English / Maths data imports cover students from entry level to level 3. The English / Maths student and enrolment data also requires some extra data fields – particularly Student Exemption fields and Enrolment Outcome. The Quals on Entry Date Awarded field is important to the English / Maths module.

The Enrolment and QOE datasets are also treated slightly differently in the English / Maths (EM) module. Whereas for Value Added, we look at an average of a set of Quals on Entry for a student, in the EM module, we are looking at the "Best" applicable prior qualification. For the 3 Year summary, we are also looking at the "Best" applicable enrolment achievement.

What Data should I import?

The EM module concentrates on English and Maths qualifications only. All other qualifications will be ignored. Enrolment and Quals on Entry Imports should contain only Maths and English qualifications. When selecting data for your import dataset you should only include courses / qualifications with "English" or "Math" in the title. This should effectively filter your data. (Although a few qualifications such as "Aromatherapy" will get through)

You should include all Levels of English and Maths qualifications from Entry Level to Level 3.

The PLR is a good source of Qualifications on Entry and this is recommended – your MIS system team should have access to the PLR.

For Quals on Entry data, the date the qualification is awarded is important for the EM Module calculations.





The Import Process - Step 1

The purpose of Step 1 is to select your import type and the datasource for the import.

0ne	Grade from Total Colle	ege Ltd.					
Home	e Reference Data	Imported Data	Import	System Maintenanc	e Value Added	English / Maths	
lome	Import English/Maths D	ata					
Step Sele	1: Select English / M ct Import Student Enrolment Student Quals on Entry	Maths Data Imp Select Dat SQL S Flat To	ort and Da a Source Gerver table/v ext csv file	ta Source Note - Ti the Value view Server Win Auth UserName	hese imports are sep; e Added imports apar ((ocal) sa	arate and have different sy t from the Course import w Database Timeout Password	GP 10
000	Course In Year Grade Point 1 KS5 Pup	~		DataSource	StudentImport		Choose DataSource
				(Confirm Settings and	Continue to Step 2	

In the example above, we have selected the student import and selected a SQL Server table / view as the source. On the right of the screen, the SQL Server credentials are entered to locate the datasource. Pressing the *Choose Datasource* button will test the connection to the SQL server. If the connection is valid, it will open a screen from where you can select the table or view.

)ata Source elect Data Source						
SQL Server table/view	Server	(local)		Database	GP	
) Flat Text csv file	Win Auth					
Excel xls file (97-2003)	UserName	sa		Password	**	
	DataSource	StudentImport			Choose DataSource	I
inue to Step 2			ImportDat	a_Details		×
			Success Please s	sfully conne elect a data	cted to database. asource from the list below:	
			DataSou	urce Stu	dentImport	~
					Sav	e Cancel

Alternatively, you may choose to import data from a flat text csv file, in which case, you will need to provide a file name and path.





🛈 OneG	rade from Total Colle	ege Ltd.						
Home	Reference Data	Imported Data Ir	mport S	System Maii	ntenance	Value Added		
Home	mport							
Step 1	: Select Data Impo t Import Student	Select Data Source	e ource er table /viev		\OneGrade\	\ImportFiles\importSti	ident csv	Select File
OE	Enrolment	 Flat Text of 	csv file		Concorde	unport lies unportou		Sciect ne
0 9	itudent Quals on Entry itudent Points on Entry	 Excel xls fi 	ile (97-2003	3)				
00	Course .3 VA Student Data							
	n Year Grade Point 1 KS5 Aim	~			Cor	nfirm Settings and Co	ntinue to Step 2	

What the data should look like

When you look at the data from within SQL Server Management Studio, a SQL Server view / table should return data that looks in a similar format to:

ľ	select	t * from	n Studen	tImpor	t											
107 %	Results	Messag	es													
	Col1	Col2	Col3	Col4	Col5	Col6	LLDD	Col7	FSM	Col8	String1	String2	UserDefinedString3	String4	Num	UserDate
1	16/17	AA0506	Ahmed	Ali	08/1/2000	40	NULL	М	1	TG1254BXZ	NULL	NULL	NULL	NULL	NULL	NULL
2	16/17	BG5651	Grahams	Ben	15/2/2000	31	NULL	М	0	TG1254AXZ	NULL	NULL	NULL	NULL	NULL	NULL
3	16/17	IT7601	Trainor	lan	05/7/2000	31	NULL	М	0	TG1254AXZ	NULL	NULL	NULL	NULL	NULL	NULL
4	16/17	JY7850	Young	Jackie	25/5/2000	31	13	F	0	TG1254AXZ	NULL	NULL	NULL	NULL	NULL	NULL
5	16/17	PR8941	Rantock	Petra	06/1/2000	45	12	F	0	TG1254BXZ	NULL	NULL	NULL	NULL	NULL	NULL

Note that the names of the columns are unimportant. However, the order in which the columns appear is critically important – as is the format of the data within each column. Refer to the Import Specifications at the end of this section for more details.

CSV files must be quote-delimited and comma-separated. When viewed using Notepad, this is how a Qualifications on Entry import will appear:

importQOE.csv - Notepad
File Edit Format View Help
"17/18","S101","50045416","","C","05/05/2014" "17/18","S101","50045544","","D","" "17/18","S101","50079256","","E","" "17/18","S103","50045544","","D",""

Note that every field has quotes around it and that even empty fields must appear. In this example, the learning aim descriptions are not imported (4th column of data) however an empty pair of quotes must still be used.





The Import Process – Step 2

After selecting a suitable datasource, press the *Confirm Settings and Continue to Step 2* button. This will save the currently selected import settings. At this point you have the option to display validated data prior to finishing the import. By default it is ticked.



Press the *Import Data* button to continue. The Importer will then validate the data being imported and if no errors are found, it will display the data:

Step 2: D	3p 2: Data Verification and Import																
< Return to Step 1 🕴 Firete Insport 🗹 Show validated data potr to finaling import ? The data has been validated accossfully. Please press the Finalin leport buttom to complete the leport.																	
ID		AcademicYearID	StudentRef	Sumame	Forenames	DOB	Ethnicity	LLDDandHealthPro	Gender	FreeSchoolMeal	TutorGroupCode	UserDefinedString1	UserDefinedString2	UserDefinedString3	UserDefinedString4	UserDefinedNumbe	UserDefinedDate
▶ 1		16/17	AA0506	Ahmed	Ai	08/1/2000	40		м	True	TG1254BXZ						
2		16/17	BG5651	Grahams	Ben	15/2/2000	31		м	False	TG1254AXZ						
3		16/17	IT7601	Trainor	lan	05/7/2000	31		м	False	TG1254AXZ						
4		16/17	JY7850	Young	Jackie	25/5/2000	31	13	F	False	TG1254AXZ						
5		16/17	PR8941	Rantock	Petra	06/1/2000	45	12	F	False	TG1254BXZ						

At this point, the data has not been imported into the database tables. The data shown is a preview of the validated data. To complete the import, press the *Finish* button. On successful completion, the message will be displayed:

Import Successful	×
The Data has been successfully transferred to the database tables.	
ОК	

Data Validation Error Reporting

During the Import, the system checks the datatype of each field of data. For example, it checks that numeric values are valid numbers, that dates are of the correct format and that alphanumeric values (text) is the correct length. It also checks that an import has the correct number of columns on each row and that all required fields are complete. Further, it checks for duplicate records in the dataset being imported and reports any rows that are duplicated.





Check for the number of columns

The importer will check every row of the import datasource for the number of columns it contains. Any rows containing the incorrect number of columns are reported:

Step 2: Data Verification and Import			tion and Import		Checking the number of co	olumns in the datasource.
< Return to Step 1 Import Data		Show validated	data prior to finishing import?	The number of Columns in the sel		
ſ		RowNumber	ExpectedColumns	ActualColumns		
ſ	►	2	16	17		

Check for duplicates

The importer will check the datasource for duplicated records. If it finds row(s) that are duplicated, it will display the unique combination of fields that are causing the problem:

Ste	p 2: Data Verifica	tion and Import	Checking Duplicates.	
	< Return to Step 1	Import Data	Show validated data prior to finishing import?	There are duplicated records in the datasource.
	AcademicYearID	Student Ref		
۲	16/17	AG0001		

For Student, Enrolment and Quals on Entry imports, you will be given the opportunity to continue and allow OneGrade to de-duplicate the data. OneGrade will cycle through the identified records, keeping the first and removing subsequent duplicates. Be patient. This may take a few minutes.

Check for required fields

The Importer will check every required field and report any issues. Fields causing a problem are displayed in red. Moving the cursor with the mouse over a field will display the problem with the field in a tooltip:

Ste	p 2: Data Verifica	tion and Import		Checking that
	< Return to Step 1	Import Data	Show validated	data prior to finishi
	ID	AcademicYearID	Student Ref	Sumame
•	2	16/17		Ganley
			Required Field (St	tring field)

Check for correct datatypes

The Importer will check each data cell in the import dataset. It will check that Alphanumeric fields (text) do not exceed their stated length, Dates are in the correct format of dd/mm/yyyy, numeric fields contain numeric values only and that Boolean (Y/N) fields only contain either Y, N, 0 or 1. Any fields causing a problem will be shown in red. By moving the mouse over the field, a tooltip will specify the issue:

Step 2: Data Verification and Import			tion and Import		Checking that ea	ach field has valid dat	a.						
	< Return to Step 1 Import Data Show validated data prior to finishing import? One or more of the data fields holds invalid data or required fields are			quired fields are empty	. These are highlight	ed in red. Hover mo	use / left click for mor	e informat					
		ID	AcademicYearID	Student Ref	Sumame	Forenames	DOB	Ethnicity	LLDDandHealthPro	Gender	FreeSchoolMeal	TutorGroupCode	UserDet
	•	2	16/17	BG0001	Ganley	Bethany	20/01/2000	31		F		TGCode	
									Requir	ed Field (Boolean fi	eld)		







Import Specifications

Student Import

Column	DataType	Example	Require d
AcademicYearID	Alphanumeric (5)	16/17	Yes
StudentRef	Alphanumeric(20)	AG101004	Yes
Surname	Alphanumeric(100)	Jones	
Forenames	Alphanumeric(100)	Anthony	
DOB	Date (dd/mm/yyyy)	03/04/2000	
EthnicityCode	Alphanumeric(2)	35	
LLDDandHealthProblemCode	Alphanumeric(2)	12	
Gender	Alphanumeric(1)	М	
FreeSchoolMeal	True / False	Y (can be: Y, N, 0, 1, 2) *	Yes
	(Alphanumeric(1))		
TutorGroupCode	Alphanumeric(50)	AA-004-Jones-B	
UserDefinedString1	Alphanumeric(255)		
UserDefinedString2	Alphanumeric(255)		
UserDefinedString3	Alphanumeric(255)		
UserDefinedString4	Alphanumeric(255)		
UserDefinedNumber	Numeric (2dp)		
UserDefinedDate	Date (dd/mm/yyyy)		
UserDefinedString5	Alphanumeric(255)		
UserDefinedString6	Alphanumeric(255)		
UserDefinedString7	Alphanumeric(255)		
UserDefinedString8	Alphanumeric(255)		
UserDefinedNumber2	Numeric (2dp)		
Exempt_DiffDisab	True / False	Y (can be: Y, N, 0, 1)	
	(Alphanumeric(1))		
Exempt_Overseas	True / False	Y (can be: Y, N, 0, 1)	
	(Alphanumeric(1))		
Exempt_LessThan150Hrs	True / False	Y (can be: Y, N, 0, 1)	
	(Alphanumeric(1))		

Data is imported into the EngMatStudent table.

Rows of data must have a unique combination of AcademicYearID and StudentRef.

*The Value: 2 is accepted – it is automatically converted to TRUE by the importer.

Enrolment Import

Column	DataType	Example	Required
AcademicYearID	Alphanumeric (5)	16/17	Yes
StudentRef	Alphanumeric(20)	AG101004	Yes
LearningAimRef	Alphanumeric(8)	50018344	Yes
CourseCode	Alphanumeric(50)	EngAS01-B	Yes*







CompletionID	Numeric	1	Yes*
OutcomeID	Numeric		
Grade	Alphanumeric(20)	В	
StartDate	Date (dd/mm/yyyy)	01/09/2016	Yes
PlannedEndDate	Date (dd/mm/yyyy)	20/05/2017	
ActualEndDate	Date (dd/mm/yyyy)		
UserDefinedString1	Alphanumeric(255)		
UserDefinedString2	Alphanumeric(255)		
UserDefinedString3	Alphanumeric(255)		
UserDefinedString4	Alphanumeric(255)		
UserDefinedNumber	Numeric (2dp)		
UserDefinedDate	Date (dd/mm/yyyy)		
UserDefinedString5	Alphanumeric(255)		
UserDefinedString6	Alphanumeric(255)		
UserDefinedString7	Alphanumeric(255)		
UserDefinedString8	Alphanumeric(255)		
UserDefinedNumber2	Numeric (2dp)		
TeachingGroupCode	Alphanumeric(50)		
TeachingGroupTitle	Alphanumeric(255)		

Data is imported into the EngMatEnrolment table.

When set to True, the System Setting "Enrolment Import - Retain existing enrolments for students not being imported" allows the Enrolment import to allow multiple enrolment datasets to be imported and used within OneGrade. When this System setting is False, (the default setting), existing enrolment data is removed for the academic year(s) that exist in the import dataset and replaced with data contained in the import dataset.

Any CourseCode which does not already exist within the database will be created in the Course table.

*Rows of data must have a unique combination of AcademicYearID, StudentRef, LearningAimRef, StartDate, ActualEndDate, CompletionID and CourseCode. If CompletionID is left blank, it will be set to 1 (Continuing). If the CourseCode is left blank, it will be set to n/a. ActualEndDate may be left blank.

Fields in Orange have been added for version 1.23 (August 2020)

Column	DataType	Example	Required
AcademicYearID	Alphanumeric (5)	16/17	Yes
StudentRef	Alphanumeric(20)	AG101004	Yes
LearningAimRef	Alphanumeric(8)	50018344	Yes
Description	Alphanumeric(50)		
Grade	Alphanumeric(20)	В	Yes
DateAwarded	Date (dd/mm/yyyyy)	01/07/2015	Yes

Student Qualifications On Entry Import





Data is imported into the EngMatStudentEntryLearningAim table.

Rows of data must have a unique combination of AcademicYearID, StudentRef, LearningAimRef, Description, Grade and DateAwarded.

If the Description field is left blank, OneGrade will display the Learning Aim description on applicable screens where a match can be made with its internal list of learning aims.

There is a system setting "QOE Import - Replace all QOE for a Student". If this is set to True, it will remove all QOE records for a student (if the student appears in the import data) and then import the QOE records for that student that appear in the import data. If the setting is False, the importer will add any new QOE records and update existing records. (The default setting is False).

Quals on Entry will only be imported for students who have already been imported for the AcademicYearID.

Note that the Grade and DateAwarded are required.

Note that generic **ENGGCSE** and **MATHGCSE** Learning Aims are available to import the highest English and Maths GCSE grades. For more details, see the Base Learning Aims-Grades screen section.

Column	DataType	Example	Required
AcademicYearID	Alphanumeric (5)	16/17	Yes
CourseCode	Alphanumeric(50)	EngAS01-B	Yes
CourseTitle	Alphanumeric(150)	English Language AS	
		Group B	
UserDefinedString1	Alphanumeric(255)		
UserDefinedString2	Alphanumeric(255)		
UserDefinedString3	Alphanumeric(255)		
UserDefinedString4	Alphanumeric(255)		

Course Import

Data is imported into the Course table

Rows of data must have a unique combination of AcademicYearID and CourseCode.

In-Year Grade Import

Column	DataType	Example	Required
AcademicYearID	Alphanumeric (5)	16/17	Yes
StudentRef	Alphanumeric(20)	AG101004	Yes
CourseCode	Alphanumeric(50)	50018344	Yes
Grade	Alphanumeric(20)		

Data is imported into the EngMatInYearGrade table.





Rows of data must have a unique combination of AcademicYearID, StudentRef and CourseCode.

If the system setting "InYear Grade Import - Overwrite InYear Grades" is True, existing InYear grades will be overwritten if a different grade appears in the import dataset for the same AcYr, Student and Course. If the setting is False, no existing grade will be overwritten if a different grade appears in the import for the same AcYr, Student and Course.

(Note that an In-Year period (1 - 12) must be selected from the drop-down list when the import is selected on the Import screen)

Staff Teaching Group (introduced v1.23 August 2020)

Column	DataType	Example	Required
AcademicYearID	Alphanumeric (5)	20/21	Yes
StaffCode	Alphanumeric(24)	475639G8J	Yes
TeachingGroupCode	Alphanumeric(50)	EngAS01-BCG	Yes

Data is imported into the StaffTeachingGroup table

Rows of data must have a unique combination of AcademicYearID, StaffCode and TeachingGroupCode.

There is a system setting "StaffTeachingGroup Import - Replace all records for the Academic Years in import dataset". If this is set to true, then all StaffTeachingGroup records will be removed for academic years and StaffCode that appear in the import dataset and the records within the dataset will be inserted. If set to false, then new records will be inserted where they don't already exist.

Staff User (introduced v1.23 August 2020)

Column	DataType	Example	Required
StaffCode	Alphanumeric (24)	475639G8J	Yes
Username	Alphanumeric(50)	georgejohnson	Yes
Title	Alphanumeric(150)		
Forenames	Alphanumeric(100)		
Surname	Alphanumeric(100)		
EmailAddress	Alphanumeric(100)		
MobileTelephone	Alphanumeric(15)		

Data is imported into the StaffUser table

Rows of data must have a unique combination of StaffCode and Username.

A StaffCode may only be related to one single Username. A Username may only be related to one single StaffCode.

If the Username previously existed as a Student User account, then the record will be updated to be a Staff User account.





Student User (introduced v1.23 August 2020)

Column	DataType	Example	Required
AcademicYear	Alphanumeric (5)	20/21	Yes
StudentRef	Alphanumeric(24)	AG101004	Yes
Username	Alphanumeric(50)	arron.greenly2	Yes
Title	Alphanumeric(150)		
Forenames	Alphanumeric(100)		
Surname	Alphanumeric(100)		
EmailAddress	Alphanumeric(100)		
MobileTelephone	Alphanumeric(15)		

Data is imported into the StudentUser table

Rows of data must have a unique combination of AcademicYear, StudentRef and Username.

If a Username is already associated to a member of staff, it will be ignored and the Student User record will not be created or updated.

A StudentRef in different academic years may have different Usernames (e.g. AG101004 in 19/20 may have a Username arrongreenly. AG101004 in 20/21 may be associated to Username arron.greenly2). Similarly, a Username in differing academic years may be related to different StudentRefs.

Personal Target Grade (introduced v1.28 June 2021)

Column	DataType	Example	Required
AcademicYear	Alphanumeric (5)	20/21	Yes
StudentRef	Alphanumeric(24)	AG101004	Yes
CourseCode	Alphanumeric(50)	EngAS01-B	Yes
PersonalTargetGrade	Alphanumeric(10)	В	Yes

Data is imported into the EngMatInYearGrade table

Rows of data must have a unique combination of AcademicYear, StudentRef and CourseCode.

There is a system setting called "Personal Target Grade Import - overwrite existing Personal Targets in dataset". If this is set to True, then where a Personal Target Grade exists in the import dataset for the Student and Course then any existing Personal Target Grade will be overwritten. If this setting is set to False then no existing Personal Target Grades will be overwritten. Personal Target Grades will always be imported where none already exist.





KS5Pup Import

The KS5Pup data is supplied to each college by the DfE every January. It is a detailed record of progress in Maths and English and Other qualifications for students who fell into scope for reporting by the DfE the previous summer. The data is supplied by the DfE in .csv format.

The Import consists of selecting the following columns from the file in the specified order:

```
AcademicYearID,
ForvusIndex,
Surname,
Forename,
Gender,
DateOfBirth,
Age,
Student in English progress measure,
Progress made in English,
Baseline points for English progress measure,
                                                   (only available from KS5Pup18.csv (Jan 2019))
Highest points in English,
                                                   (only available from KS5Pup18.csv (Jan 2019))
Student exempt from English progress measure,
Student in Maths progress measure, Progress made in Maths,
Baseline points for Maths progress measure,
                                                   (only available from KS5Pup18.csv (Jan 2019))
Highest points in Maths,
                                                   (only available from KS5Pup18.csv (Jan 2019))
Student exempt from Maths progress measure
```

Data is imported into the EngMatKS5Pup table. Rows of data must have a unique combination of Forenames, Surname, Gender and Qualification. New data records are appended and existing data records are updated.

Import Information and Summarisation

At the top right of the import screen, information about the latest key imports is displayed (i.e. the Enrolment, Student and Quals on Entry imports).

Latest Key Imports	
Eng/Mat Enrolmen	t 266 days ago (SQL)
Eng/Mat Quals On	Ent 47 days ago (SQL)
Eng/Mat Student	200 days ago (SQL)
Summarise	Last Updated:Jun 14 2023 2:59PM

Pressing the ... button will display a screen showing the last time each of the imports was run.

Also, the Summarise button is available showing the date a summary was last run. Pressing the Summarise button will update the Summary data. It is exactly the same as pressing the Summarise button on the Analysis screens.

It is important that the data is re-summarised after an Enrolment import to ensure that data remains synchronised.





Note that the system setting "Summarise data immediately after Enrolment data Import" is available.

By default, this will have been set to **true** where a Web Module Licence exists in the database. This system setting will run the summary automatically after the Enrolment import. A notification message is displayed on the import screen.

Import Troubleshooting

When importing data from CSV files, it is common for extra space or return characters to be included. This will result in errors being reported during the import – commonly as an "Incorrect number of columns" error. To resolve this, open the file in Notepad, go to the end of the file and remove any spaces and return characters that appear after the last legitimate character (which will be a ").

Again, in CSV files, empty or null fields should be shown as "". If the field is "NULL", then this will cause errors to be reported if the field is a Boolean, date or numeric field. To resolve this, open the file in Notepad, then use the Find and Replace facility to find "NULL" and replace it with "".

Duplicate data records in the import datasets can often occur due to unexpected data appearing in your MIS system. As an intermediate measure, the importer can identify and de-duplicate your datasets during the import process. Be patient. Depending on the size of the dataset and number of duplicates found, this may take a few minutes.





Base Learning Aims and Grades

This is a list of Learning Aims included in the DfE progress calculations. These Learning Aims and Grades provide the **Start Points** for the English / Maths progress calculation.

The list of Qualifications and Grades along with their Capped Points are shown on the screen. Alongside these are up to 10 Alternative Grades that are mapped to each Grade. The reason for this is that there are a wide variety of Grades entered into MI Systems and the PLR data and these grades need to be mapped to an equivalent valid grade.

For Instance the Grade U may be recorded as U, Unclassified, #Unclassified, #UC. All of these alternatives need to be catered for.

To Add or Remove a grade mapping, press the Details button alongside the record.

Fn Fn	nlish/Maths DfF Referen	ce Data - Base Learning Aims Gr	ades	- Value Audeu Engli	5177 1100115					
ne ur	LearningAimRef	Description	Grade	Capped Points	EngMatType	Alt Grade 1	Alt Grade 2	Alt Grade 3	Alt Grade 4	Alt Grade 5
Detail	s 10064588	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 GC	G	1.00	Maths	G5	G4	G3	G2	G1
Detail	s 10064588	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 GC	Q	0.00	Maths					
Detail	s 10064588	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 GC	U	0.00	Maths	Unclassified	x			
Detail	s 10064618	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 G	1.		l <u> </u>					
Detail	s 10064618	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 G	iglish / Maths Ba	se Grades Details						
Detail	s 10064618	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 G	Learning Aim: 10	064588 WJEC Level 1/Leve	el 2 GCSE in Additional I	Mathematics (Pilot)				
Detail	s 10064618	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 G	Grade: U	Сарре	d Points: 0.00	Type: Ma	aths			
Detail	s 10064618	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 G								
Detail	s 10064618	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 G	The Grade ab	ove is mapped to: Alternativ	ve Grade 01 - mapped to	grade (Unclassified \checkmark]			
Detail	s 10064618	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 G	Alternate Grad	e: Unclassi	fied	Map Grade				
Detail	s 10064618	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 G								
Detail	s 10064618	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 G	To change the To remove the	Alternate Grade, edit text a Alternate Grade, remove th	nd press the "Map Grad e test and press the "Ma	e" button. ap Grade" button.				
Detail	s 10064618	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 G								
Detail	s 10064643	IMIAL Level 1 Certificate								
Detail	s 10064643	IMIAL Level 1 Certificate	< Back	Next >						Close
Detail	s 10064643	IMIAL Level 1 Certificate								

Any Alternative Grades that are mapped to the Grade selected are shown in the "Mapped to" drop down list.

English / Maths	Base Grades Details	;			
Learning Aim:	10064588 WJEC Let	vel 1/Level 2 GCSE	in Additional Mather	matics (Pilot)	
Grade:	U	Capped Points:	0.00	Type:	Maths
The Grade	above is mapped to:	Itemative Grade 0	1 - mapped to grade	(Unclassified	~
Alternate G	àrade:	Alternative Grade Alternative Grade	01 - mapped to grad 02 - mapped to grad 03 - [available]	e (Unclassified e (X)	
To change To remove	the Alternate Grade, the Alternate Grade,	Alternative Grade Alternative Grade Alternative Grade Alternative Grade	04 - [available] 05 - [available] 06 - [available] 07 - [available]		
< Back	Next >	Alternative Grade Alternative Grade Alternative Grade	08 - [available] 09 - [available] 10 - [available]		

In the example above, it can be seen that the Grade U is mapped to 2 Alternative Grades (Unclassified and X) – these are shown in the dropdown list and are stored against Alternative Grades 01 and 02 respectively.







To add the Alternative Grade "#Unclassified", select the next available Alternative Grade (Alternative Grade 03) and enter the text #Unclassified into the Alternate Grade textbox and press the "Map Grade" button:

English / Maths Base Grades Details	
Learning Aim: 10064588 WJEC Level 1/Level 2 GCSE in Additional Mathematics	(Pilot)
Grade: U Capped Points: 0.00	Type: Maths
The Grade above is mapped to: Alternative Grade 03 - [available]	
Altemate Grade: #Unclassified Map	Graf OneGrade X
To change the Alternate Grade, edit text and press the "Map Grade" button. To remove the Alternate Grade, remove the test and press the "Map Grade" bu	utton Are you sure you wish to change the Alternate Grade - Alternative Grade 03 - Javailable to #Unclassified?
< Back Next >	Yes No

You will then be asked to confirm this. Press *Yes* to continue. The "#Unclassified" Alternative Grade will then be stored:

OneGra	ade from Total College L	td.										
Home	Reference Data Imp	orted Data Import Syst	tem Maintenance	Value Added Engl	ish / Maths							
Home En	nglish/Maths DfE Referenc	e Data - Base Learning Aims-Gr	ades									
	LearningAimRef 4	 Description 	Grade	Capped Points	EngMat Type	Alt Grade 1	Alt Grade 2	Alt Grade 3	Alt Grade 4	Alt Grade 5	Alt Grade 6	Alt Grade 7
Detai	is 10064588	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 GC	G	1.00	Maths	G5	G4	G3	G2	G1		
Detai	ls 10064588	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 GC	Q	0.00	Maths							
Detail	ls 10064588	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 GC	U	0.00	Maths	Unclassified	×	#Unclassified				
Detai	is 10064618	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 GC	•	8.00	5	1.0.1						
Detai	ls 10064618	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 GC	A	7.00	English / Maths Base Gr	rades Details						×
Detai	ls 10064618	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 GC	В	6.00	Learning Aim: 100645	88 WJEC Level 1/Level	2 GCSE in Additional M	Nathematics (Pilot)				
Detai	ls 10064618	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 GC	с	5.00	Grade: U	Capped	Points: 0.00	Type: Mat	hs			
Detai	ls 10064618	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 GC	D	4.00								
Detai	is 10064618	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 GC	E	3.00	The Grade above is	s mapped to: Alternativ	e Grade 03 - mapped to	grade (#Unclassifi $\epsilon \sim$				
Detai	ls 10064618	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 GC	F	2.00	Alternate Grade:	#Unclass	fied	Map Grade	The Grade Mapping	was saved successfully		
Detai	ls 10064618	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 GC	G	1.00					You may need to refre	esh the main screen to	see all changes.	
Detai	ls 10064618	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 GC	Q	0.00	To remove the Alter	mate Grade, edit text an mate Grade, remove the	test and press the "Map Grade	e button. p Grade button.				
Detai	ls 10064618	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 GC	U	0.00								
Detai	ls 10064643	IMIAL Level 1 Certificate in	. P	2.50								
Detai	ls 10064643	IMIAL Level 1 Certificate in	. Q	0.00	< Back Ne	ext >						Close
Detai	ls 10064643	IMIAL Level 1 Certificate in	. U	0.00								

To Remove a mapped grade, open the details form, select the Alternative Grade from the drop down list (in this case we wish to remove the "#Unclassified" Grade stored against Alternative Grade 03). Then make sure all text is removed from the Alternate Grade textbox. (Do not leave any spaces).

lom	e Englis	h/Maths DfE Reference	e Data - Base Learning Aims-Gra	des										
		LearningAimRef	Description	Grade	Cappe	ed Points	EngMatType	Alt Grade 1	Alt Grade 2	Alt Grade 3	Alt Grade 4	Alt Grade 5	Alt Grade 6	Alt Grade 7
	Details	10064588	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 GC	G	1.00		Maths	G5	G4	G3	G2	G1		
	Details	10064588	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 GC	Q	0.00		Maths							
	Details	10064588	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 GC	U	0.00		Maths	Unclassified	×	#Unclassified				
	Details	10064618	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 GC	•	8.00									171
	Details	10064618	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 GC	A	7.00	English / Maths	Base Grades Details							
	Details	10064618	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 GC	В	6.00	Learning Aim:	10064588 WJEC Let	vel 1/Level 2 GCSE in	Additional Mathematics	(Pilot)				
	Details	10064618	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 GC	с	5.00	Grade:	U	Capped Points:	.00	Type: Maths				
	Details	10064618	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 GC	D	4.00									
	Details	10064618	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 GC	E	3.00	The Grade	above is mapped to:	Alternative Grade 03	-mapped to grade (#Un	classifie 🗸				
	Details	10064618	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 GC	F	2.00	Alternate G	irade:		Map	Grade				
	Details	10064618	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 GC	G	1.00	Technolog	the Alternate Conde		Mar Cardellin Harr					
	Details	10064618	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 GC	Q	0.00	To change To remove	the Atemate Grade,	remove the test and press the	ess the "Map Grade" button.	tton.				
	Details	10064618	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 GC	U	0.00									
	Details	10064643	IMIAL Level 1 Certificate in	P	2.50									
	Details	10064643	IMIAL Level 1 Certificate in	Q	0.00	< Back	Next >						Clo	se
-	Details	10064643	IMIAL Level 1 Certificate in	U	0.00									





Then press the "Map Grade" button and the mapping will be removed:

0	0	neGrade	from Total College L	td.							
	Ho	me R	eference Data Imp	orted Data Import Syste	em Maintenance Va	lue Added English /	Maths				
Н	lome	e Englis	sh/Maths DfE Referenc	e Data - Base Learning Aims-Gra	ides						
			LearningAimRef 4	 Description 	Grade	Capped Points	EngMat Type	Alt Grade 1	Alt Grade 2	Alt Grade 3	Alt Grade 4
		Details	10064588	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 GC	G	1.00	Maths	G5	G4	G3	G2
		Details	10064588	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 GC	Q	0.00	Maths				
)		Details	10064588	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 GC	U	0.00	Maths	Unclassified	х		
		Details	10064618	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 GC	•	8. q *					
		Details	10064618	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 GC	A	7.0 English / Maths B	ase Grades Details				
		Details	10064618	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 GC	В	6.(Learning Aim: 1	0064588 WJEC Level	1/Level 2 GCSE in Additio	nal Mathematics (Pilot)		
		Details	10064618	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 GC	С	5.0 Grade: U	J	Capped Points: 0.00	Type:	Maths	
		Details	10064618	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 GC	D	4.0					
		Details	10064618	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 GC	E	3.0 The Grade a	bove is mapped to: A	Nternative Grade 03 - [avai	lable]	\sim	
		Details	10064618	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 GC	F	2.0 Alternate Gra	ade:		Map Grade	The Grade Mappi	ng was saved succe
		Details	10064618	WJEC Level 1/Level 2 GC	G	1.0				You may need to	refresh the main scre

Generic ("Dummy") GCSE Base Learning Aims

There are two generic or "dummy" GCSE Base Learning Aims that have been added to OneGrade that are not part of the DfE data set.

These are ENGGCSE and MATHGCSE. They appear on the Base Learning Aims-Grades screen as any other base Learning Aim with grades (A*-G and 1-9) and points assigned to them as you would expect.

Most MI systems allow you to record the highest previous English GCSE and the highest previous Maths GCSE grade for a student in an academic year. This valuable data source can now be imported into OneGrade alongside the PLR data using these generic ENGGCSE and MATGCSE generic or "dummy" Learning Aims for a more complete Quals on Entry dataset.





Progress Learning Aims and Grades

This is a list of Learning Aims included in the DfE progress calculations. These Learning Aims and Grades provide the **End Points** for the English / Maths progress calculation.

OneGrad	e from Total Co	llege Ltd.																				-	0)
ome F	eference Data	Imported Data Impo	ort System I	Maintenance	Value Added En	glish / Maths																	
ne Engl	sh/Maths DfE R	eference Data - Progress Lea	aming Aima-Grad	jes 👘																			
	LearningAimR	le Description	Grade	Capped Points	Capped Points from 19/20	EngMat Type	Display in Web	Alt Grade	Alt Grade 2	At Grade 3	Alt Grade 4	Alt Grade 5	Alt Grade 6	Alt Grade 7	Alt Grade 8	At Grade 9	Alt Grade 10	1617 Approved	1718 Approved	1819 Approved	1920 Approved	2021 Approved	2122 Approved
Details	60148366	Pearson Edexcel Level	7	7.00	7.00	English	True											Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y
Details	60148366	Pearson Edexcel Level	8	7.70	8.00	English	True											Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y
Details	60148366	Pearson Edexcel Level	9	8.00	9.00	English	True											Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y
Details	60148366	Pearson Edexcel Level	Q	0.00	0.00	English	False											Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y
Details	60148366	Pearson Edexcel Level	R	0.00	0.00	English	False											Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y
Details	60148366	Pearson Edexcel Level	U	0.00	0.00	English	True	Unclassified	x									Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y
Details	60148421	WJEC Eduqas Level 3	A	8.00	9.00	Maths	True											Y	Y	Y	Y	N	N
Details	60148421	WJEC Eduqas Level 3	в	8.00	9.00	Maths	True											Y	Y	Y	Y	N	N
Details	60148421	WJEC Eduqas Level 3	С	8.00	9.00	Maths	True											Y	Y	Y	Y	N	N
Details	60148421	WJEC Eduqas Level 3	D	8.00	9.00	Maths	True											Y	Y	Y	Y	N	N
Details	60148421	WJEC Eduqas Level 3	E	5.00	4.00	Matho	True											Y	Y	Y	Y	N	N
Details	60148421	WJEC Eduqas Level 3	F	0.00	0.00	Mathe	True	Fall	FL									Y	Y	Y	Y	N	N
Details	60148421	WJEC Eduqas Level 3	Q	0.00	0.00	Maths	False											Y	Y	Y	Y	N	N
Details	60148421	WJEC Eduqas Level 3	R	0.00	0.00	Maths	False											Y	Y	Y	Y	N	N
Details	60148421	WJEC Eduqas Level 3	U	0.00	0.00	Maths	True	Unclassified	x									Y	Y	Y	Y	N	N
Details	60148469	AQA Level 3 Advanced	A	8.00	9.00	English	True											Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y
Details	60148469	AQA Level 3 Advanced	в	8.00	9.00	English	True											Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y
Details	60148469	AQA Level 3 Advanced	с	8.00	9.00	English	True											Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y

The Progress Learning Aims and Grades screen operates in an identical manner to the Base Learning Aims screen in the way that it shows the Learning Aim, Grades, Points and Alternate Grades. The Alternative Grades are managed in exactly the same way as on the Base Learning Aims and Grades screen.

For a Learning Aim to be included in the Progress Calculation, it must be approved for use in an Academic Year. This data is supplied by the DfE and is based upon the Condition of Funding (CoF) flag against the Learning Aim found in the LARS.

Within the Web module, grades will only be available for selection where "Display In Web?" is ticked. This can be managed on the right side of the details screen. This flag is used to rationalise the number of available grades available for selection in the web (by default the grades Q and R are unticked, as are non-relevant Entry Level Grades – for example for an Entry Level 1 qualification, grade 1 is ticked, but grades 2 and 3 are unticked)

••••	-						-						
).	English / Maths	Progress Grade	s Details									x	
).	Learning Aim:	60154470 ESB E	Entry Level Award	l in ESOL Skills f	or Life (Speaking	g and Listening)	(Entry 2)						H
/).	Grade:	Q	Capped F	Points: 0.00		Capped Poi	nts from 19/20:	0.00	Туре	: English			H
).).).).	The Grade Alternate G To change To remove	above is mapped rade: the Alternate Gra the Alternate Gra	d to: Alternative	Grade 01 - [avai press the ''Map (ext and press the	lable] Map Grade" button. ""Map Grade" bu	∽ Grade utton.] Display In Web? Save		
).).).	< Back	Next >									Close		





Imported Data

Student Data

0	OneGrad	e from Total	College Ltd	I.																-	- C	ı x
н	me R	eference Dat	a Import	ed Data Impo	t System Mainte	enance Va	alue Adde	d Englis	h / Maths													
Hor	e Englis	h/Maths Enro	olments Eng	glish/Maths Studen	ts																	
		Academic Year ID	Student Ref	Sumame	Forenames	DOB	Gender	Ethnicity	LLDD and Health Problem	Tutor Group Code	FreeSchoo	Student Strin 1	Student String 2	Student String 3	Student String 4	Student Number	Num Approve Enrol Maths	Num Approve QOE Maths	Max QOE Points Maths	Num Approve Enrol English	Num Approve QOE English	Max ^ QOE Points English
۲	Details	18/19	30154476	Anahan	Halton	08-12-2		Ancan			0						1	0		1	0	
	Details	18/19	30144324	Adams	104	26-15-2		toper.			0						1	3	2.50	1	1	0.40
	Details	18/19	30143260	Adarts	Joseph .	2149-2		tope/.			0						1	1	4.00	1	2	4.00
	Details	18/19	30154542	Agrees	Dearer .	22-15-2		Experi.			0						1	0		1	0	
	Details	18/19	30154450	Alter	Navaride East	15-01-2.		Ana			0						1	0		1	0	
	Details	18/19	30156286	Aut	Reharmed	04/06/2.		Aub			0						1	0		1	0	
	Details	18/19	30151148	Abstan	Anathan Dennis	15/13/1.		Experi-			0						1	3	4.00	1	5	4.00
	Details	18/19	30147942	Ann	Test .	14-51-2.		Experi.			0						1	1	4.00	1	2	4.00

All imported students are displayed on this screen. If any Students are listed with just their Student Reference (no Name, DOB etc.), this may be because the student record was created as part of the Enrolment import and the record was not included within the Student Import.

There are 11 User Defined Fields available. These will be displayed if they are configured within the User Defined Field Maintenance screen (available from the main menu under System Maintenance).

At the right side of the screen, the number of Enrolments and Quals on Entry records are displayed along with the max number of QOE points for English and Maths – where available.

Pressing the details button shows the Enrolments and Quals on Entry for the student for the current year as well as previous years.

	Academic Year ID	Student Ref	Sumam	e	Forena	mes DOB	G	ender	Ethnicity	LLDD ar Health Problem	nd Tuto Grou Code	r ip e	FreeSchoo	Studen 1	Stri St	tudent tring 2	Student String 3	Student String 4	Stur	dent A hber E	vum Approve Enrol	Appro QOE
)etails	18/19	30154475	English /	(Maths	nYear An	alysis Details -																
)etails	18/19	Minetize.	Enrol	ments (Juals on F	ntry																
letails	18/19	30140280		Show All	Enrolments	for this student																
etails	18/19	3054942						-	Planned	Actual	-				_		-		-		-	
tails	18/19	30154450		Year ID	Aim Ref	Title	Le	Date	End Date	End Date	ID Complete	Status	ID	Desc	Code	Title	Grade	Grade	Points	Approve	Type	at
tails	18/19	30196286	•	18/19	5009	Functional Skills qu	1	03/09	24/0	11/0	3	Withd	3	Not A	W059	W059			-1.00	Y	English	
taile	18/19	30101148		18/19	6014	GCSE (9-1) in Math	2	03/09	21/0	11/0	3	Withd	3	Not A	M062	M062			-1.00	Y	Maths	
tails	18/19	314762																				
ails ails	18/19 18/19	3747942 3744555																				
tails tails tails	18/19 18/19 18/19	2147942 2144523 2015233																				
tails tails tails tails	18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19	2747942 2744953 275253 275253																				
ails ails ails ails ails	18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19	214760 214603 215228 215228 215257 211780																				
ails ails ails ails ails ails	18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19	2147942 214653 215523 215523 215523 215523 215523 215523																				
ails ails ails ails ails ails ails	18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19	214762 21483 21523 21523 21525 215525 2155555 2155555 2155555 2155555 2155555 2155555 2155555 2155555 21555555 2155555 21555555 21555555 21555555 21555555 21555555 21555555 2155555555																				
ails ails ails ails ails ails ails ails	18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19	2147942 2114682 2115228 2115227 2115227 2116245 21145245 21145245																				
ails ails ails ails ails ails ails ails	18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19	214562 214682 215826 215256 215257 214526 214526 214525 214526																				
ails ails ails ails ails ails ails ails	18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19	21454 21488 21528 21528 21529 21529 21458 21458 21458 21458 21458 21468	2 ro	ws																		
ails ails ails ails ails ails ails ails	18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19 18/19	21454 21488 21528 21528 21528 21529 21406 21406 21408 21408 21408	2 ro	ws																		



ONEGRADE

English / Maths Module User Guide – July 2023

Enrolment Data

OneGra	de from Tot	I College L	td.																										-	0	×
Home	Reference I	ata Imp	orted Data In	mport System	Maintenand	ce Val	ue Added	English / Maths																							
Home En	jish/Maths S	udents Us	er Defined Fields	English/Maths E	infolments																										
Show re	cords with in	alid Grades																													
	Academi Year ID	Student Ref	Sumame	Forenames	DOB	Gende	r Learning Aim Ref	Title	Lev	Start Date	Planned End Date	Actual End Date	Completi ID	Completion Status	Outcome ID	Outcome Desc	Course Code	Enrolment Grade	Enrolment String 1	Enrolment String 2	Enrolment String 3	Enrolment String 4	Enrolment Number	Enrolment Date	Teaching Group Code	Capped Points	Mapped Grade	Approve	d Count of QOE	Eng Mat Type	î
Detail	18/19	30144583	Anto	Red	69-11-1		50093198	Functional Skills qualificati	1	04/09/2	28/06/2		1	Continuing			W059											Y	1	English	
Detail	18/19	37-6450	Ann	No.	8111.		50118201	Functional Skills qualificati	Е	03/09/2	28/06/2	26/02/2.	2	Completed	1	Achieved	M060	EL3								0.40	3	Y	0	Maths	
Detail	18/19	30154534	Ann	Terratulati	0.012		50118213	Functional Skills qualificati	Е	26/11/2	28/06/2	24/04/2.	2	Completed	1	Achieved	×072	EL2								0.40	2	Y	0	Maths	
Detail	18/19	1015303	Anders	(Date)	20121		50093186	Functional Skills qualificati	2	20/09/2	21/12/2	02/01/2.	2	Completed	3	Not Achi	F017									-1.00		Y	0	English	
Detail	18/19	1015303	Anders	(Part	201212		501098	Functional Skills qualificati	2	20/09/2	21/12/2	21/12/2	2	Completed	3	Not Achi	F017									-1.00		Y	0	Maths	
Detail	18/19	3015057	Anderson	Oke	19.99.2		50109868	Functional Skills qualificati	1	03/09/2	28/06/2	03/10/2.	3	Withdra	3	Not Achi	M060									-1.00		Y	1	Maths	
Detail	18/19	30150571	Anderson	Ote	19.09.2		60148366	GCSE (9-1) in English Lan	2	03/09/2	14/06/2	10/09/2.	3	Wthdra	3	Not Achi	W003									-1.00		Y	2	English	
Detail	18/19	3010706	Anderson	Dates	1248-1		50093186	Functional Skills qualificati	2	21/09/2	30/01/2		1	Continuing			C060											Y	3	English	
Detail	18/19	3012706	Anderson	Dylan	12-09-1		50093198	Functional Skills qualificati	1	30/01/2	30/01/2	18/07/2.	2	Completed	1	Achieved	C060	PA								2.50	P	Y	3	English	
Detail	18/19	3012766	Anderson	Dyles .	12-09-1		50109868	Functional Skills qualificati	1	30/01/2	30/01/2	08/04/2.	2	Completed	1	Achieved	C060	PA								2.50	P	Y	3	Maths	
Detail	18/19	3012766	Anderson	Dates	12-09-1		501098	Functional Skills qualificati	2	21/09/2	30/01/2	26/02/2.	2	Completed	1	Achieved	C060	PA								4.00	P	Y	3	Maths	
Detail	18/19	10-1076	Anderson	Lan.	1949-1		500983	Functional Skills qualificati	Е	04/09/2	28/06/2		1	Continuing			W059											Y	2	English	
Detel	18/19	and the second	- Andrews	100	10.00.0		50119201	Eurotional Skills qualificati		03/09/2	29/06/2		1	Continuing			MOGO											Y	1	Mathe	

The Imported Enrolment data is displayed on this screen. As with the Student Data screen, there are 11 User Defined Fields available. These will be displayed if they are configured within the User Defined Field Maintenance screen (available from the main menu under System Maintenance).

At the far right of the screen, if the capped points can be calculated (from the Grade / Completion / Outcome fields), this will be shown. The Approved column indicates if the Learning Aim is flagged as CoF (Condition of Funding) and will be included in the DfE progress calculations. The number of Quals on Entry and whether the Learning Aim is Maths or English is also displayed.

In the far left corner, a "Show Record with Invalid Grades" checkbox will filter for those grades which are not mapped to a Progress Learning Aim Grade. Pressing the details button allows you to map the grade to a valid grade as necessary.

0/140300 GC3E (31) III Eligiisti Larig 2 03/03/2 03/00/2 2 Collipieted 3 INDL ACII W003 FL	
500 English / Maths Enrolment Details -	×
Grade and Mapping Guals on Entry	
Learning Aim for currently selected Enrolment: 60148366 - GCSE (9-1) in English Language	
Grade for currently selected Enrolment: FL Mapped Grade for currently selected Enrolment:	
This Grade is currenty unmapped. To map this grade, select the Grade to map it to, then select an available Alternative Grade to which to save it. Then press the "Map Grade" button. Note that the Grade selection is only available for Learning Aims in Scope.	
Map the Enrolment Grade to: U (0.00)	
and save this as: Alternative Grade 03 - [available] V Map Grade	
< Back Next >	Close

To map a grade from here, the method is similar to that described in detail for the Base and Progress Learning Aims and Grades. In the lower half of the screen, select the grade to map to and then select an available Alternative Grade position (In the above example "Alternative Grade 03"). Then press the Map Grade button.

As well as allowing you to map any unmapped Progress grades, the details screen will also display the Quals on Entry related to the student.





Course Data

The Course data screen is exactly the same as that used by the Value Added module in OneGrade. It is the same data stored in the same table and is shared by the English / Maths and Value Added modules.

Student Quals on Entry Data

This screen lists all imported Quals on Entry.

The Student User Defined Fields are displayed on the main screen. 11 of these User Defined Fields are available. These will be displayed if they are configured within the User Defined Field Maintenance screen (available from the main menu under System Maintenance).

At the far right of the screen, Grade Mapping and Capped Points are shown where available.

Any unmapped grades may be filtered for by pressing the "Show Records with Invalid Grades" checkbox. If you wish to map any Grades for Learning Aims in scope, press the Details button:

0	OneGrad	from Total Co	llege Ltd.																	_	٥	×
н	ome F	eference Data	Imported D	ata Import Sys	tem Maintenance Val	ue Added En	glish / Mat	hs														
Hor	ne Engl	sh/Maths Studer	nts User Defin	ed Relds English/Mat	ths Enrolments Imported (Course Data En	glish/Maths	Student Quals o	in Entry													
	Show rec	ords with invalid	Grades																			
		Academic Year ID	Student Ref	Sumarie	Forenames	DOB	Gender	Entry Learning Aim Ref	Title	Leve	Grade	Description	Date Awarded	Student String	Student String 2	Student String 3	Student String 4	Student Number	Capped Points	Mapped Grade	In Scope?	^
Þ.	Details	18/19	214034	Bady	Ban Dobahar	07/05/2002	м	60145055	GCSE (9-1) in English Language	2	UN	WJEC Eduqas Level 1/Level 2 GCSE	22/08/2018								Y	
	Details	18/19	30151240	Berran	English / Mathe St																Y	
	Details	18/19	30142811	Braker	tingisit/ matris si	touent cor per	810						- Bel								Y	
	Details	18/19	10100704	Beat	Learning Aim for	currently selected	Entry record	60145055	GCSE (9-1) in English Language												Y	
	Details	18/19	10101007	Batter	Grade for current	fly selected Entry	record	UN	Mapped Grade for cu	mently sel	ected Entry rec	ord:									Y	
	Details	18/19	1011762	Baller																	Y	
	Details	18/19	10152108	Baller	This Grade is c	currently unmappe	d.														Y	
	Details	18/19	2148415	Real I	Then press the	ade, select the G "Map Grade" bu	ade to map i itton.	t to, then select	an available Alternative Grade to which t	o save £.											Y	
	Details	18/19	10152072	Reta	Note that the G	Grade selection is	only availab	le for Learning A	Vins in scope.												Y	
	Details	18/19	3744502	Rev.	Map the Entry	record Grade to:	U (0.00)		~		_										Y	
	Details	18/19	30144582	Ret a	and save this a	35:	Alternative	Grade 03 - [av	alable] v Ma												Y	
	Details	18/19	818.00	Caser	-																Y	
	Details	18/19	1014528	Carrey																	Y	
	Details	18/19	1014050	Canaham	< Back	Next >							Close								Y	
	Details	18/19	30140580	Career																	Y	
			_											-								

To map a grade from here, the method is similar to that described in detail for the Base and Progress Learning Aims and Grades. In the lower half of the screen, select the grade to map to and then select an available Alternative Grade position (In the above example "Alternative Grade 03"). Then press the "Map Grade" button.

Student Quals on Entry by Qual Data

This screen shows the Quals on Entry in a slightly different way to the Quals on Entry Data screen. It Groups the Learning Aims and Grades and shows how many students have those grades. This screen is useful to identify which grades are most common – including any unmapped grades (which can be filtered for by pressing the "Show Records with Invalid Grades" checkbox).



ONEGRADE

English / Maths Module User Guide – July 2023

0	neGrade	e from Total Colle	ge Ltd.						- 🗆	×
Hom	ne Re	ference Data I	mported Data Imp	oort System Maintenance Value Added	English / Math	15				
me	Englis	h/Maths Students	User Defined Fields	English/Maths Enrolments Imported Course Data	English/Maths S	Student Quals on Entry	English/Maths Stud	dent Quals on Entr	y By Qual	
Sho	ow recor	rds with invalid Grad	les							
		Academic Year ID	EntryLearningAimRe	Title	Grade	Mapped Grade	Capped Points	Count of Students	▼ In Scope?	
C	Details	18/19	60147003	GCSE (9-1) in Mathematics	2	2	3.00	326	Y	
C	Details	18/19	60147003	GCSE (9-1) in Mathematics	3	3	4.00	308	Y	
C	Details	18/19	60147003	GCSE (9-1) in Mathematics	4	4	5.00	301	Y	
C	Details	18/19	60142923	GCSE (9-1) in English Language	3	3	4.00	281	Y	
C	Details	18/19	50118201	Functional Skills qualification in Mathematics at E	Pass	1	0.40	268	Y	
C	Details	18/19	60152461	GCSE (9-1) in English Literature	3	3	4.00	198	Y	
C	Details	18/19	60147003	GCSE (9-1) in Mathematics	1	1	1.00	195	Y	
C	Details	18/19	60144476	GCSE (9-1) in English Literature	3	3	4.00	170	Y	
C	Details	18/19	50109868	Functional Skills qualification in Mathematics	Pass	P	2.50	166	Y	
[Details	18/19	60144476	GCSE (9-1) in English Literature	4	4	5.00	166	Y	
[Details	18/19	60145055	GCSE (9-1) in English Language	3P	3	4.00	166	Y	
0	Details	18/19	60142923	GCSE (9-1) in English Language	2	2	3.00	164	Y	

To map any invalid grades, press the Details button:

OneG	Grade from Total Colleg	ge Ltd.										-	-	
Home	Reference Data Ir	mported Data Imp	oort Syste	m Maintenance	e Value	Added	English / M	Maths						
Home E	nglish/Maths Students	User Defined Fields	English/Math	s Enrolments In	mported Cou	urse Data	English/Ma	ths Student Qu	als on Entry	English/Math	ns Student Qua	ls on Entry B	ly Qual	
Show I	records with invalid Grad	les												
	Academic Year ID	EntryLearningAimR	Title				Grade		Mappe Grade	ed	Capped Points	Count of Students	▼ In So	ope?
Deta	ails 17/18	60145055	GCSE (9-1) ir	n English Langua	ige		UN					6	Y	
Deta Deta	ails English / Maths	s Student QOE Detail	s - 60145055	GCSE (9-1) in E	English Lar	nguage	nguage					-		X
Deta	ails Grade for curr	ently selected Entry rec	cord:	UN		Марр	ed Grade for c	currently selecte	ed Entry recor	d:]		
Deta	ails This Grade	is currenty unmapped.			Students	s with Qua	als on Entry for	r this Learning /	Aim and show	ing if the grade	e is mapped:		-	
Deta	ails Then selec	s grade, select the Grad t an available Alternativ	ve Grade to sa	ave it to.	R	tudent lef	Sumame	Forenames	Aim Ref	Title	Grade	Grade	Points	
Deta	ails Finally, pres	ss the "Map Grade" bu	tton.		38	140628	Roger	Tyler	60145055	GCSE (9-1) in	n E 7M	7	7.00	
Deta	ails Map the Er	ntry Grade to:			38	146177	Learning	Parrie L.	60145055	GCSE (9-1) in	n E 9D	9	8.00	
Deta	ails U (0.00)			~	38	144034	Petralger	Calum	60145055	GCSE (9-1) in	n E UN			
Deta	ails and save th	his as:			38	144255	Page	Robe	60145055	GCSE (9-1) in	n E UN			
Deta	Alternative	Grade 03 - [available]		~	38	146755	Salar	Lagran J.	60145055	GCSE (9-1) in	n E UN			
Deta	ails				38	140304	Coursey	Less-Die	60145055	GCSE (9-1) in	n E UN			
Deta	ails		Мар	Grade		140461	Salar	Lase	60145055	GCSE (9-1) in	n E UN			~
Deta	ails				373 my	vs								
Deta	ails				0.0101									
Deta Deta	ails ails < Back	Next >											Close	
Deta	ails													
126 rows ((filtered)													

For information, the details screen shows all students for the academic year on the selected Learning Aim.

To map a grade from here, the method is similar to that described in detail for the Base and Progress Learning Aims and Grades. In the lower half of the screen, select the grade to map to and then select an available Alternative Grade position (In the above example "Alternative Grade 03"). Then press the "Map Grade" button.





DfE KS5Pup Data

This screen shows the data imported from the KS5Pup data file published by the DfE and available from the tables checking website.

All of the student records are imported from the file, but only the fields relevant to the English / Maths progress data are imported. Note that the Highest Points and Baseline Points for Maths and English are only available for the 17/18 data onwards (KS5Pup18).

0	OneGrade	from Total Coll	ege Ltd.																				- 0) ×
н	ome R	eference Data	Imported Data	Import S	ystem Maintena	ince Value Ar	dded English	/ Maths																
Ho	ne Engle	h/Maths Student	s User Defined	Relds English/I	faths Enrolments	Imported Cours	e Data English/I	Maths Student Qu	als on Entry En	alish/Maths Stud	ent Quals on Entry	By Qual English	h/Maths DfE Data	- KS5 Pup										
		Academic Year ID	Forvus Index	Sumame	Forename	Gender	Date Of Birth	Age	Student in English progress measure	Progress made in English	Baseline points for English progress measure	Highest points in English	Student exempt from English progress measure	English Progress (from Summary)	English Claim Year ¢rom Summary)	Student in Matha progress measure	Progress made in Mathe	Baseline points for Maths progress measure	Highest points in Mathe	Student exempt from Maths progress measure	Maths Progress (from Summary)	Maths Claim Year (from Summary)	StudentR	e -
۲	Details	17/18		Agrees	Ber Levis		07/10/1008	17	No				No			Yes	-1.00	4.00	3.00	No	-1.00	17/18	2010/201	
	Details	17/18	1000	Availab	Parma		25-05-1988		No				No		17/18	No				No		17/18	214782	
	Details	17/18	1004	Read	24		25/12/1988	18	No				No			No				No			3014030	
	Details	17/18	1000	ANDROFTH	6.0HDA		62-11-1008		No				No			No				No				
	Details	17/18	1008	Armonth Do.	Annual Array		10.02.108		No				No			No				No			21475	
	Details	17/18	1007	40.0	lana .		17-12-1888		No				No	-1.00	17/18	Yes	1.50	1.00	2.50	No	-0.60	17/18	10.000	
	Details	17/18	1000	Aber	Danal		04-02-1008		No				No			No				No			STACK.	
	Details	17/18	1000		Referred 1.		15-52-1988		No				No		17/18	No				No			Margaret .	
	Details	17/18	887.0	Also .	inter .		21-03-1988		No				No			Yes	-1.00	4.00	2.50	No	-1.00	16/17	MINERS OF	
	Detete	17/10	-	-	and the state of t	-	-	-	Ma				No.			Ver	0.00	4.00	4.00	11.	0.00	17/10	and so the second	

When the data is imported, OneGrade will attempt to map the StudentRef to the Student record based on the Student Name and Date of Birth. The mapped StudentRef is displayed in the far right column. Where the StudentRef is blank, press the details button and search for the student to map the record manually.

As well as displaying the progress information from the KS5Pup file, where records are mapped to a Student Ref, OneGrade will display progress information from its own DfE 3 Year summary, so you can directly compare the KS5Pup progress to the calculated progress based on the enrolment and Quals on Entry information imported into OneGrade.

Details	17/10			Crianic	141	03/03/1330	10 110		
Details	17/18	5042	DONEGAN	CHLDE	1	10/10/1998	18 No		
Details	17/18	50250	DfE Da	ta - KS5 Dup De	ataile				
Details	17/18	50365	ROM DIE Da	ta - K55 Fup De	ctons				
Details	17/18	5010	Fam						
Details	17/18	30364	Sei	arch for a Studen	nt from the list of impo	orted English and Mat	ths students		
Details	17/18	51156	Fo	orename	06		_		
Details	17/18		Su Su	umame	NEG-IN	Search			
Details	17/18	50467	Ge	ender			lf st	udent appears in multiple rec	ords, select any record
Details	17/18	98572	LEN	Academic	Student Ref	Forenames	Sumame	Gender	DOB
Details	17/18	50575	Lane	15/16	10140706	Other Rev.	(herease)		12.02.000
Details	17/18	50614	-	16/17	1000	China Ann			10.00.000
Details	17/18	52645	100	17/10	1000	Chief Ser	in the second second		10.00.000
Details	17/18	50637	And a	1//10					
Details	17/18	50705	3	rows					
Details	17/18	50741	110						
Details	17/18	807%	~	Assign Student	Ref				
Details	17/18	50765	Pes						
Details	17/18	5003	10.0						
Details	17/18	50501	(Berl	< Back N	Next >				Close
_									

It may be that the DfE data has two forenames for a student, whereas the data imported into OneGrade only has one; or vice versa. Using the search facility will locate the student and when a match has been identified, press the "Assign Student Ref" button to map the record. If multiple records for the same student appear (i.e. enrolled over multiple years), select any record.





In Year Grades

In Year Grades are designed to be Grades that show the progress of students through the year. In Year grades can be imported for up to 12 points during the year.

Select the Academic Year, any of the 12 checkboxes and the imported data will be displayed.

This facility shows the In Year Grades entered for the students, whether those Grades are valid (i.e. whether they match the marking scheme for the Learning Aim(s) for the Course) and whether the In Year Grade has been updated within OneGrade.

0	OneGrad	le from Total C	olle	ge Ltd.								_		\times
Ho	ome R	eference Data	h	mported Dat	a Import	System Mainter	nance Value Added Engli	sh / Maths						
lom	ne Englis	sh/Maths In Yea	r Gr	ades										
Ac	ademic Y	ear 19/20 ~]	Point 1	Point 2	Point 3 🗌 P	oint 4 🗹 Point 5 🗌 Point 6	Point 7	Point 8	Point 9 🗌 P	oint 10 🗌 Poin	it 11 🗌 Point 1	2 Show	
		AcademicYea		Gender	DOB	CourseCode	CourseTitle	Personal Target Grade	Matching Enrolment?	Point5_Grade	Point5 Valid?	Point5 Updated?	Learning Aim Ref	^
	Details	19/20	а,	м	01/11/2002	W003	GCSE English Language		Y	4P	Y	N	60148366	
	Details	19/20	:11	F	24/05/2003	W003	GCSE English Language		Y	5	Y	N	60148366	
	Details	19/20	:11	F	30/07/2001	W003	GCSE English Language		Y	6	Y	N	60148366	
	Details	19/20	:11	F	06/06/2003	W003	GCSE English Language		Y	3	Y	N	60148366	
	Details	19/20	:11	F	02/01/2002	W003	GCSE English Language		Y	4	Y	N	60148366	
	Details	19/20	:/0	F	15/07/2003	W003	GCSE English Language		Y	6	Y	N	60148366	

The In Year Grades may be updated within OneGrade after they have been imported. This may be useful to correct typos or to correct Grades without the need to edit the source of the data.

Hor	ne R	eference Data	Im	ported Dat	ta Import	System Mainter	nance Value Added E	nglish / Maths								
ome	Englis	h/Maths In Yei	ar Grad	les 👘												
Aca	demic Ye	sar 19/20 v		Point 1	Point 2	Point 3 🗌 Po	aint 4 🗹 Point 5 🗌 Poin	t 6 🗌 Point 7	Point 8	Point 9	Point	10 🗌 F	Point 1	1 🗌 Point 12	Show	
		AcademicYe		Gender	DOB	CourseCode	CourseTitle	Personal Target Grade	Matchin Enrolm	ng Point5	_Grade	Point5 Valid?		Point5 Updated?	Learning Aim Ref	9
	Details	19/20	(Fe)	4	01/11/2002	W000	GCSE English Language		Y	4P		Y		N	6014036	96
	Details	19/20											x	N	6014836	56
1	Details	19/20	- get											N	6014836	66
	Details	19/20			dia fang									N	6014836	66
	Details	19/20	W	003 - GCSE	E English Langua;	ye .								N	6014836	6
	Details	19/20							Point 5 G	ade				N	6014836	6
	Details	19/20							-					N	6014836	6
	Details	19/20												N	6014836	36
	Details	19/20	A	owable Gra	des 🗌 Show A	itemate Grades 1	-5? Show Alternate Gra	des 6-10?						N	6014836	66
	Details	19/20		Learnin	a Aim					Canned	Cappe	4 ·	^	N	6014836	66
	Details	19/20		Ref	Der Der	cription		Completion	Grade	Points	from			N	6014836	6
	Details	19/20	1.	601483	SS Pear	non Edevoel Leve	el 1/Level 2 GCSE (9.1) in	Continuing	9	8.00	9.00			N	6014836	6
			ĽĽ	601483	66 Pear	tion Edwoel Leve	al 1/Level 2 GCSE (9-1) in	Continuing	8	7.70	8.00	_				
				601483	66 Pear	son Edexcel Leve	el 1/Level 2 GCSE (9-1) in	Continuing	7	7.00	7.00					
				601483	66 Pear	son Edexcel Leve	el 1/Level 2 GC5E (9-1) in	Continuing	6	6.30	6.00					
				601483	66 Pear	son Edexcel Leve	el 1/Level 2 GCSE (9-1) in	Continuing	5	5.70	5.00					
				01403	cc Dara	nan Edward I au	al 1/1 and 2 GCCE /0 1) in	Continuina		6.00	4.00		~			
				2 rows												

In the example above, the grade 4P (for Point 5) has been manually edited to be a grade 4. When saved, the record will be shown as:

OneGrade from Total College Ltd.												-		×	
Ho	me R	Reference Data	h	mported Data	Import S	ystem Mainten	ance Value Added Englis	h / Maths							
Hom	Home English/Maths In Year Grades														
Academic Year 19/20 🗸 Point 1 Point 2 Point 3 Point 4 Point 5 Point 6 Point 7 Point 8 Point 9 Point 10 Point 11 Point 12 Show															
		AcademicYea		Gender	DOB	CourseCode	CourseTitle	Personal Target Grade	Matching Enrolment?	Point5_Grade	Point5 Valid?	Point5 Updated?	Leaming Aim Ref	-	
•	Details	19/20	÷F,	M	01/11/2002	W003	GCSE English Language		Y	4	Y	N	6014836	6	

Note that the Grade is now 4 and it is flagged as being updated – and valid.

There is a System Setting ("Overwrite InYear Grades edited in OneGrade") to ensure that any grades edited within OneGrade are not overwritten. This should be set to False.





Appendix A - Number of Withdrawn Days After Start Date

Throughout OneGrade, where enrolment records are displayed, a column **WDNumDaysAfterStart** is available. This is because for Completion-Attainment, the DfE guidance states that a full-time student who withdraws after 6 weeks (42 days) will be assigned 0 points.

This is a numeric value of the number of days after the start date that a student has withdrawn (Completion Status 3 – Withdrawn)

This is calculated as follows:

If Start Date is Mon 01/04/2019 and End Date is Tues 02/04/2019, Num Days = 1 day completed

If Start Date is Mon 01/04/2019 and End Date is Mon 13/05/2019, Num Days = 42 days completed

DfE funding rules are 6 weeks (42 days) for full time students.

A student must be at college for a minimum of 42 days to receive funding.

Now on 13/05/2019, 42 days were completed (and 13/05/2019 is the 43rd day)

Hence, when filtering for students who have completed 42 days, the filter WDNumDaysAfterStart >= 42 is to be used. When the system is working out if an enrolment has withdrawn before the census date, it uses WDNumDaysAfterStart < 42.

